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REPORT OF THE GOVERNING BODY

Mature, Objeclives and Strategies

The members present their report and the audited financial statemends for the year ended 31 July 2018

After the 2017/E year end, a discussion was teken by the governing body 10 seek & merger with
Sunderiand College

Legal Slaius

The Corporation wes asfabiished under The Furher and Higher Education Act 1882 Tor the purpose of
congucting Maorthumberdand Collaga. The College = an axampl chariy for the purposes of Pan 3 of the
Charilbas Aot 2071

Puhlic Banafit

Marthumbariand Callege s an exempt charity under Parl 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and is regulaied
by the Secrefary of Siate for Education, The Governors, who are aiso the Trusiees for [he purposes of
the Charities Act 2011, confirm that they have had due regard for the Charity Commission's guidance
on public penefit and ihat e required: Staigments appear elsewhere in these lnancial slatements. The
members af the Governing Body, who are trustees of the chanly, are désciosed on pages 18-21

Ingedling and reviawing the Caollege’s slraiegic objectves, the Governing Body has had due regard for
the Charily Commssion's guidance on public benefit and parficulary upon ks supplementary guidance
an the advancement of educatian. The guidante sels oul the requirement thal afl organiaations wishing
o be recngnised s chanties must demonstrate, explioty, thal their aims ame for the putic benedd

Merthumbardand Colege s iha only general Further Educadion College in Marthumberdand, sovering
1.935 square mies of the most sparsely populated county in the country,. The College ‘has been
pelvering vocational iraining, from infroduciory. level to higher education, for mare than 80 years. The
College runs ils courses from a number of campuses and centres which include Ashinglon (maim
campus), Kirkbay Hall {iand based mdusines hub}, Barwick upon Twesd and Hexham

Ag wall go dalivering full gnd nad lima courses for schanl lnavars and sdyll lsarness we alen work with
employers (o defiver appronticeships, workplaos and- bespoke Faiming courses: The Collepe aiso
provides provigion for those who are withoul work (Frough s parinership with Jobcenire Plus through

ils Ernployability programrme
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REPORT OF THE GOVERNING BODY (continued)

The currculum and earning pragrammes on o'fer s relevan] to learmers’ needs and aligred (o (osal wnd
regianal pronties. Employability skils are davelopad through relevant work exparience, real working
anvironments, commearcial entesprises and piacements. Increased learner motivation and enjoyment
are derved from additonal gualifications and enrichment acieties Enterprise & very relevant in
equipping students with (he exposue to resl work as much as possible (o eguip them with the all-round
skills and aplitudes o gain empioyment and is being developed,

The academic and vocational training programmes which are delvered by fhe College make a
significant contribution o improving the life chances of a lange nember of young people and adult
learnars many of whom come from significantly diverse backgrounds. This indudes & high proportion
with low levels of prior altainment and many who face challerges in terma of social and ecoramic
degrivation. The Coflege seehs 10 odd value to fhe somal, economic and physical well-being of the
communily Wwe s&rve by atiracting, iraning and educaling stucents successfully and in accordante wiln
o core values, so Inat thay themsalves, by vifiue of thal suceessul educalior and Iraining, are in turm
able to benefit our communily

The governors can gonfirm imat the activiiies of the College have: complied with e duly in secton 17
{3) ef iha Crariies Act 2011 1o heve dus regard 1o 1he public benafil guidance publishad by the Charity
Comumission

2017-18 College Restruciuring Exerciae

In order i address the key siratéges ame folad bBalow, 201 7-18 caw fundamental changes of laadaershio
and management 8l Morthumberland Colege part way through the scademic year |n April 2012 three
of the four members of ihe Executive Team laft the college wilh one remaining. Far the aker part of
201718 the Expcutive leam comsisted ol

Interim Principal & Chief Executve Officer
Irtesien Wice Pandpal Curnficulum

Intenem Vies Principal Firencs and Resources
Vice Princapall Ouality and Student Services

Tha new College Exaculiva Team gquickly defermined that leadership agross the college required
impravemeant gnd swillly orchestigled a oross collegs crganisationa réstneclure ang Ihres Assslant
Principals wefe aspointad interrally’

Assisianl Principal Education and Training
Assistant Principgl Appreniiceshugs and Emplover Engagement
Aszisianl Principal Sluden| Services

This resireciure reduced the College Leadership frorm 35 managers g 19 with thes impact
being:

Clearar lines of managemant accountahdity

Feduced numbers of Boibdemies 14 Enprove conglsiency

The introducton of team ieader srand of curmcuium managemant o strangthan eperational
mignagemen contrals
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REPORT OF THE GOVERNING BODY (continued)

. The merger of Apprenticeship and Business Developman! depariments aligrirg their prionikes
mavirg forward

. Separation of Cuality from Curriculum to ensure that Quality monftaring was sean a5 & separate
function and being seen 1o be mparfal

. A gharge in managament in MIS, which has lad o improved data beig avalable (ool managers

Colloge Mission and Key Strategic Alms

AL Rorihdmberand College we ang commitled 1> snd passonale apoul securing posnive eulcomes for
our sludentz Our miseion is

‘To proside outslanding ediucation and raining and agpranficeshins, prapamyy cur ghudants for
work, sendng the needs of owr commumily ang businesses”

Key Sirategic Aims:

Prepars our students for work: To ensure our atudents have aoomplebe study programone ansuning
they develop the vouational and employabiity skilis that employers demand

= Curricywm and specialsation development To epsure our cufrculum cefvery 18 highly -effigiar)
greompassing Innovalive use of lechnolagy and currculum dasign, delver @ currculum offar which
Is curent with patways 16 axisting and fulure jobs; o meet tha need for spacizisatan

= Susiainadility: Ensure ihal the Gollege 18 susiaimanla for the foresesabde fulure and can continue (o
grow income-gnd conirel cosls.

= Imestment Imeast 0 the College 0 sacuns e spociaiisl resource thal exsing and . amearsng
curmiculum requires, and create 8 sernes of highly afficient and madann learning oenines

* Become outstanding: Al strategic aress contribute to (me College betoming an culstandng
Rroicer

=  Enatanmant and student aponnncse’ Enturd oud araranment caters for all our sfudents” nasts

cfienng a comigriable envirghment, conduciive o meebng spcgl, academio and spegialist resource
resds Our #nvirgnmani akso negds to be flexiblea and vbise iechnology 1o be as efficient as

poagible

*  Waorking with Employers Ensura we are highly responsive, flaxibie and understanding of
employer’s negds, with high levels of employer engagement and high quality apprenliceship and
bespoke fraiwing.

»  |Laadership Inspinng and highly effective madarship & pavotal o ihe Coltege achaving its aims

= The ashievament of these alms has oeen foremost In the thinking of the whole leadershig of the
colege and has resulted in the restructuring ciercise noted above.
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REPORT OF THE GOVERNING BODY (continued)

Caollege Vision

Morthumberdand College dkmis o be ai exceplional college and the place of choice hal embraces
erterprise. innovation, creativity and amployabilily skils for e success of ail our studenls. At
Morihumberkand Collegs we are commitled o achisving posdwe culoomes for studants via an employer
t=d curdcudum which affars bath & pethwsy to work and a lirs! class exnenence — developing the sholls
qualities and atiributes raguinsd 10 Euccenad in tha workpace Ve sepd 1o be-atthe haar of thasconomic
and social wall-being of our county

Student Achievement 2017-18

Achievernent rates for 2017-18 compared with 2016-17 for all clasaroom based provision

Az can be sean in the tablie below Dvarad, (he haadine achieviemaerd rate for 200 T-18 & B5 8%, This
15 1,5% obove the Natlons® Rates (NR] amd an micrease of 4,1% from 2016-717 (81 B%). The All Ages
All Levals NR incraasad by 1 6% from 2016-17 1o 2017-18,

| Yaal __Stans Rt NR Pass NR Ach NR. |
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There 5 an increase in achievemant ralas for boty 16-18 and 19+ lparmers from 201817 In the case
of 16-18, it w3 marginal increase of 0 7%
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REPORT OF THE GOVERNING BODY (continued)

Financial Objeciives

Although schsevement rales al the college have been good the College fell shorl of @ numbar of is
sirategic fnancial aoeoives during 201718, resulting m ihe orgamisation restructuring exercise and naw
g60I0f Managameant team browught i0 1o address tha inancial parfarmancs for 2018-18.

Tha College's padormance during 2017-18 includes

« Fipancial deficit at end of year

®  Detonoraled cash posilion

» ESFA Francial Health grede reduced 1o inadeguate
# Conlimued mianos an incoma from pubdic lunds

«  Lack of invesimanl to improve the student expenence, provioe specialis! resourcas and resounces
fhat also generale non funded income

Key Performance Indicator Measure [ Target Actual for

201718

201718

EBITDA as % of ircome — standacd G 8% <. 8%
EBITDA - standard (F000) 1,630 (AR5}
Staff costs as % of income 58% E5.1%
Cash daysin hanoiguidity 087 18
(adjusted currant ralio)
Barrawing as % of Incoms 321 458
Rekance on ESFA income (%) a7 T8
Financial Health Score 180 Satisfactory 30 Inadequate

The Coliege s required to complata the annua! Finance Record for the Education and Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA), The currert Tinancial health raling is "inadeguate”™ which 15 nol considered an
acceptabla oidcome
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Achicvement of Objectives

The College's EDITOA (Easnings Before |nierestl, Taxalion, Deprecialion and Amortizalion) B 2017-18
wak E? BI5k was than budgeled This s mainly due 1o shorifalls on e delivery of cerfain tines of
inooma which inelude Appremiceships (£7,098k) and [he Aduw| Educalion Budge (£308k) This snorttal
irithe EBITDA has had an adverse impact on operating cashfiows

The table palow highlighls the man funding shorflalls

Funding Stream Alkocalian Aciual | Shortial|
Targat Income £000
E030 "

— L ] B
Adull Education Budgel 2387 2081 I 30E
European Socal Fung (E5F) 3.073 247 832
Labour Markel Relevanco [LMR) !
Apprerticeships 3,230 2,132 1,088

Progress has been made in mprowng the College's systems and progesses around curriouluem pianning
for 2018-19. The Cobege’s curriculum plan @ fully linked to the budget selling process ecsunng that
gach Academy's curricubum offering 5 assessed for financial viabldy but atso that they provide oood
quality provision (o leamers

Managamen! informalion momtoring and reporing requirements aere fully incorporated within the
Curriculern Cuatly Calendar hroughout 201 7-78 wih learner altendance and relention data monidored
and managed effeciively oy s1afl scrass Cobege. The banefis of ihs ane seen in the schievement of
relantion rales which are in axcess of the national average  The chanpes made wil fave & positive
impact on the performance of all College locations.
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REPORT OF THE GOVERNING BODY (continued)

Staff and Student Involvemeant

The College considers good communicalion with its stalf and siugenls o be very imponant. Regular
siaff bullatins are posted [o the staff nfraret and regular briefings, updates and team moeetings are
undertaken by the Principal and a siafl appreciation eveni was held. The College encourages steff and
student involvement through moambership of formal commitiees and representative studend councils
operate al (he Ashingien and Kirkley Hall sites, Each year both staff and siudents are invited 1o give
feedback lo the Coliege ihrough salsfacton surveys. The Student Survey results for 201718
demonstrate that the high level of overall student satsfaction has been maintained Throughout 2017-
18 Sludenl Associalion represanialives allended a nuembed of College mestings including College
Governance meetings, The College remains commitied io being an outstanding place to work for all s
stafl and 10 maximise recruiment and resention of st

Financial Results

Tha Group generated a deficil in (he vear of £2. 386k (2076-17 deficl. £102k), which includes
pxpendivre of E730k (20168-17: EV7 7] relating (o restruciuning costs, [0 addiion gn gcluarsd gain gf
EASDE (201617, EB4TR), relaling bo the LGPS pension sthame, was posbed resulling in the botal
comprehensve incame for e year being £1,546k deficil {2016-17: £E845k surplus ).

The Coflege has two subsidianes. Kirkiey Hall Limited and Business Solwtions Recruilment Services
Limided Kirkiey Hall Limtited's prncipal business activily 1 (he provision of vanous commifcial activibes
which are centred in and around Kirkdey Hall In 201718, this company made an operating profit of
E63K (201617 E78k). Bumirmss Solutions Recruilmeant Services Limied was Tarmed in Jung 2015 and
its principal business activity is the provision of recrutment services io local and regional businesses
During 201 7-18 the company made a loss of EBk (2096-17 lossof E3k). A decizion has been made to
cipge the subsidary,

Treasury policies and objectives

Treasury maragemant = the manpgement of the College s cash fiows, iis banking and money manal
transactions] iha affective contral of he nak associated with those activilies and the pursuil of aptimiuen
performmanse consiglent with ihose riska

The College has a separate Feasury management golicy in place

Tre College borrowings have been moved 10 $hofd term, due to difficullies making repaymenis, As &
result of which, the lean could be called in &t any bme. All ofher borrowing reglires the authorisabon
of the Corparation
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Taxation

The majonty of the College's actvies do not fall io be charged to Corporation Tax

Cash flows

There was a £975k net cash outflow from operating activites dunng 201 7-18 (2618-1 7. inflow E200K),
Cash flow continued 1o delerarate dunng ihe course of the year. The Group incurfed capital expenditure
af T 800K (2017 E3,27 6x), which was predominaritiy financed by finance leases and capial granis, on
contnuing 15 ennanca the teaching facilities at the Ashmgton and Eirksey Hall campusas,

Liquidity

The College has wo loens wih Northumberand County Courtl winch lotelled £3.027k a3 81 37 July
2018, Shert term loans have aiso incragsed due 1o the ssues described above, The unaatisfaciony
traging performance in 201 T-18 has resuited m the College s curran| ralip weakening whan compared

wilhy e mrensine e wnor

TR A larans ) e

Reserves policy

The Group has no-formal Reserves Policy bul recoanises the impariance of reserves in iha foancial
stability of @ny organisation, and ensures (hat there are adegquate reserves o support the College's
gcra aclivibes. The Group Ras a consoiidaled accumuialed income and expenditire resarve acooum
delicit of £3.500k; this includes a pension reserve defiord of £3.800%, The pension reseraes dofici
gecreased by £650K to £3.B00k (201817 deficit of E4 450k)

Current and Future Development and Performance

Student numbers

im 201 7-18 the Groug has dedivared ecivily hal has produced £14 988k in funtditg bady incarme [ 2016-
17 £168,038k) The College recruited 1,437 (201617 1 488) 16-1 8-pear-old learmears, 2,807 (201617
2 TOR) adol tearnare and 1 041 (20M8-17T B95] apprantices
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Currieulum developments

The Collage makes a significant cantrioubian 1o impraving the Ifa chances of a larga number of young
peopie and soull learsers mary of wihom come (rom signiflicantly diverse backgrounds. Thiz includes a
Figh propariian with low levels of prior attainment Snd many who face chatlengas i borms of social and

BCanomic deprvation

The College offers FE courses up 1o A Level squivakant, wilh progréssion oppivdlniles indo Righer
education, including HND, Foundation degree and incdudes Level 6 coursas It also offers
Apprenticeships and Work-Besed Iraining in adoition 10 spacialis! comimercial cowrses 1o mesl ihe
meeds af busineases, It caters for lulk-iime and part-time students of oll ages from 18 voar alds 1o adulis

in 201718, the curricuium doveloprments were limited (o J018/18, the currculum s mara fully abgnad
with LEP and the Morth of the Tyne Devoluton egends. Progression rodfes have been pul in place in
STEM related iopkcs 10 raflect the high lavel of akill base nesded in Engineering and Technaology,
however, the curniculum is aiso cogrisan! of the skills gaps in numeracy, ileracy and IT, as idertfied in
the Morthum barland Lacal Plan

Payment performance

Thie Late Payrnent of Commerosl Detds (nterest) At 1998 came inlo iorce on 1 November 1928 The
Collegs whan entaring into A contract for the purchase of gonds or senvices notilias the suppler thal
the Colleoa™s paymient torms are mondn and Tollowing ihe monkh of invoica. During the acoaunting
period 1 August 2017 103 July 2018, the College paid 76 per cant of 1s invoices within this coniraciual
abiganon. The Collega incurmed no interest changes in respect of 1ha |ate payment for 1hes seriod,

Rasourcas

The College (as vanous resourcas that (| can deploy in pursull of its stralegic objectives. |t s curra:lly
ilenifying sunplus lend for depose ol s Kirkiey Hall campus. Any disposal of land will reguing he
aporoval of Northumberiand County Council who has a lixed and ficating charge on all College tand
and basldimgs.

Financial

The Group has £6,415k of nel assets (incuding £3,800k panson liabildy) and long term cebtof £8,02Tk.

People

Tre Grous amploys 428 peaple (éxprassed as full ime snuivatant) of wham 222 are 1aaching staff.
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Reputation

The College has a good mepulation (acally and nationally, Maintaining o gueldy brand & essentisl for
e College's success af plirdehing shidents and exlemal relalionships

Events after the end of the reporting period

Foilowing discuszons batwesan Maorihumbariand College, Sundedane Collage and 1He Further
Educating Com missaners for the Morth, 1t has now heen agread n panciohe thal Narthum begland
College wil merge with Sunderiand College.

Staft sl Morthemberand College will now coniinue 1o work inclose pardnetshp with collaaguas in
sunoeriand College in ankicipation of fhe formal merger. anticipaled o compieie on 1 March 2018

Principal Risks and Unceriainties

The College continues to develop and embed the system of internal control, induding finanoial,

e e e e - e

operalionsl and risk management which s designed lo protect the Sollege’s assets and repulation,

The Coltege maintans both strelegic &nd pperat:onal nek registers. The College semar leadership team
has ideniified aight wey siralegic risks, esch nok has been assgned oan ndividual within the senior
teadershep I8am wino & required (o manage and monitar the rsx across the year Sirategic risks ars
revienved and revised on 8 reguiar basis and s & reparisd o e Sudlt Commitiee, The Key straleoc
rigks relata to A fadure foo

+  acheve langel studant cultomes

+  maintain inascial sustainability

» develop and evalve an eflecte business conlinudy glan

= respond appropriataly 1o the ehangkng esddannal environment

# respond sdequalaly o changes in ocal transpad podicy

s angage effectwealy with key stakeholders

« gperate afeciive HR sysiams and processas

o pravide an [T infrastructure that s fit lor purpose for bolh siaff and studenis
s ensure siudents and 3tafl are salaguarded eflechvely

¢ prsura (e College i compliant with-all Health and Salfely legstation

0
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Cperational nsk regsiers are hald agains! key funchonal arsas and aach anea assigred o a mamber
af the College leadership leam who & required 1o manage and moror 1ha register over the yaar
amanding 3& and when raquired

Iny order for e Collgge 1o gain assurence thal gks are besng managed effectively, the Collegs sopies
siraleqic and operational feks Both before cantrols [graes nsk) and after controls [net ngk)

The grozs risk will cagture iha Tull polential magnitude of the risk, while the nel nak will score the risk (o
reflect the mibgating aclions laken by he Callege.

Based on the siralegic plan, the Senior Leadership Team underakes a comprehansive régular revigw
ol the stralegic risks o which the College 5 exposed and have oversll responsibiity for the
adminstralion, implementation dnd manitoring of the risk managémeni systems and procésses of the
College. They co-ordinabe (he review of 1he sirategic nisk register ensuring thal sysigms, protedures
and cantrola which mitigate any potential impact on tha College have baen identified and that thase
canrls are then implementad and therr effectivencss reviewed. In addition fo s the Sanior
Leadership Team also considers any nisks which may anse a5 & resull ol 8 new area of work beng
ungerfaken by the College.

Cin @ regular basis the Senlor Lesdership Team reports the strategic risks to the Audii Commiliee and
the Board of Governors whera the gross rigk & clacsifiod as ‘madium and abova’ along with the
mifgaling actons laken and ihe nel nsk score and any Wogress mede

Quthned betow 15 8 description of somie of the mare matenal risks hat may affeot e College. Nal all
the faciors ara within ihe College's control Ofher faciors basidas those | sted below may also adversely
affect the College

1. Fallure 1o respond appropriately io the changing external envirenmaent

{a}) Governmeant Funding

The Collage has consideranle rélance an continued gevernmant furding thraugh the aducation seclar
funding badies and fhmough Office for Stwdents. In 201718, Bi% of Ine College's revenue was
Liltimately publie lunded and thes level of ragquirarmant & axpecias 16 conlinde (0 The thorl 1o madium
lerm
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The Gollege s aware of 2evaral issues wich may impact on fulure funging

# The demand led funding system appliad 6 FE collegas and other providars in respect of adull
provision. The funding methodology apples a seres of factors such 85 guided learning hours and
slUccess rates io calculate an amount of funding to be received for each earner. Such funding
eannol Be guaranieed thowugh

s  The government is reviewing s priorifies for the adult skilla sector o ensure that the UK has the
gkills neaded 10 compete n he global acanamy.

#  Tha iniroduchon of the Appranticeshio Levy has signiflicantly changed [heé relationship batween thi
CoSege and empioyers and represents both an opportunity and & threat

¢ Tne College s aware of several 3sues which may mpact on future funding, ncloding
apprenticeship reforms and fhe cevoiulion of the adult educafion budgel The ¢ollege, in
conpinetion with is hey stakeholders, s developing @ siralegy for growth in response (o the
devoiution agenda and to (he appranticeships reform. Il & recognised that the introduction of the
appreniicaship lavy has significantly affect tha markel place

This risk |& miligated in a number of ways:

=  Funding ks derned thraugh & number of drect and indiract contracieal & rangaments
s Byerduring the College & rgarous in delvening high qualily educalion and traning

= Corsderable locus and imvesiment s placed on mamtaming and managing key nelabonshups wl
e various fundmg bodees

&  Ensuring the Coige i focised on hose prigrnty sactars winch il continde 1o banafl from pubhc
funding.

»  Ragular diakogus with funding bodias in doe courss

= Thecontinuation of the delivery of European Sooial Fund contracis exther as the aad prosidar or
g5 2 pariner provider

12
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ib} Tuition fee policy

Ministers have corflinmed that the fee assumotion rema’ng al 50% (this s the perceniage of fees which
the Governmen! funds Adull coursed) In lne with the majority of other colleges, the Callege will
inerease witlon fees i sccordance with the reing fee sssumptons. The sk for the Coflege s et
demand fsllz off a3 fees increase. This will impact on the growth airalegy of the College

Thes risk ts mitigated in & number of ways

= By ensunng the Colege © righrous in dalivaring high quakly education and {ransmg, thus ensuring
yalue for money for students,

& Cloge monioring of (he demand for courses as Mices change

The College asaists siudents whom {zce financial barmiers o paricipation in further educelion and
traiming by making bursary awands in ways 1hal bast it the needs and circumstanoes of each studarnt
This bursary awarcs will cover ilems such bt the cosig of ransport, meals, books and eguipment.

(e} Maintain adequate funding of oension Habilities

Dirng 201 7=18, the empioyers’ confribution rate lo the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
was 26 8% of persionable pay due to the impact of tve 31 March 2018 actuarial valustion

As 3 resull of (he recenl update 1o the 31 March 2016 actuaral valuaban, the pension dalicn has
decreased from £4.450x to E3 800k The financial stalomenis report the Collepe's share of tha
Marthumberiand County Counct LGPES doficd on its balance shewt in line with the requirements of FRS
102

2. Fnilure to maintain the financial viability of the College

The Colege's currant health grade & classibed as Inadequale due o the deliclt culturn. The frading
environment of the FE 5e810r is challenging due io-a number of factors, which inciugde:

. Faling student numbers due 2 local demographics

. iCopimuing consirans on iunier educalion Tunding ansing iram ibe ongomg cuis N pubin secior
spanding

L Govemmend legigiative changes which inchide the introduction of the Apprenticeship Lesy whach
has rasdiiad in a sgnificant unforesaen decing (0 the uptaske of Apprenticeshios by Evy paying
amployans
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MNerthumberiand College Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 July 2018
REPORT OF THE GOVERNING BODY (continued)

- Resang staff costs dug o changes 1o employer naticnal irsurans conthbulion fales and INCrasses
in he Coflege's LGPS emplover contibution rale a3 o comdequence of the 31 March 2016
achuariat valualion

Thess rsks are miligeied i a number of ways

L] By riporous Sudgel seliing procedures and sensitivily analyss
. Regular in year buocge! mantoring

- Robust financial controls

. Exploring ongoing orocutamen| alfcencies

Thiz mesger groposals are also relevant to this msue

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS

in Ine with ofher colleges and with universities, Northumberiant College has many stekenolders. These
mefude:

Slunenis)
Education sactar funding bodies;

FE Carm missesnar

Sialf,

Loca| em ployers (with Speoifio nks)|
Local Authonties,

Lacal Entasorsae Parinerships [LEPs)
The lgcal community,

Othar FE institutsons,

Accrediting Universiles

Traade unongs: and

Frofesssanal bodes

The College mcognises the impordance of hese retalionships and angages 0 reguiar commurcalion
with them 1hrough the College website and by meslings
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Northumberiand College Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 July 2018
REPORT OF THE GOVERNING BODY (continuad)

TRADE UNION FACILITY TIME

The Trade Unian (Facility Tima Publication Regquiremants) Ragulations 2017 require the callege o
publish infarmation on facdity time arangemants lor rade urean officals al the college.

Relevant union officials

Numbers of employvess who were rélevant unian aficals FTt emploves number
[ duting the relevant penssd

2 19
Percentage of time spent on facility time
Parcentage of 1irma Mumber of employvees
0% e
160 g
5139 . o —
1005 f
Percentage of pay blll spent on facllity time 3 —
Total cost of facility time - 2010 |
Tatal pay bill 3 L46.249
Fercentage ol total bill spent on lacility ime 43%
Paid trada union activilies -
Tine spert on paid trade union activities as a percentage of 3%
fodal paid facility time
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Northumberiand College Financlal Statements for the Year Ended 31 July 2018
REPORT OF THE GOVERNING BODY {continued)

Equality

The College & commijied lo ensurng equalily of oppartunity for all who learm and work here We respect
and vahie postivaly diferancas inage. deabity, gander reassignmant, marrags and owil parnerships
pregrancy snd matemity, race. raligion and bebef and ses We strive vigorously o remove condifions
which place people al & disadvantace and we will aclively combal bigoiry. This palicy is resourced,
implemamnies and monitored on a planned bass The College’'s Equakly Policy s publshed on the
Collegi's inframel site

The College pubdishes an Annual Equality Reporl and Equality Qbjectves (o ensure compliance with all
relevant equality legisiation including the Eguality Act 2010. The CoSege undertakes eguality smpact
agsessments an-all new policies and procedures and publishes the resulis. Equality Impact assesaments
are also undaraken lor enising policies and procadures on g prioritised bass

The Coflegn is a "Posilive aboul Disabled” smpioyer @and has commitied o the princphes and ohjaciives
of the Postive aboul Disabled flandard. The Coifege considers all employment applications from
disached persons, beanng in mind the aplibdes of e mdividuas concemad, and guaraniees an
interviow o any cisabled applicant who meeis e essantal orifeda for the poat Where an axisling
employes becomes disanled, avery effori & made 1o ensure fhat employment with the Coliege
contnues. The Collaga's poficy & O provice Iraining, career devalopment and opportundies for
promobon which, as far as possibla, prowde identical opporiunites o' those of non-dsabled employees.

Tha Collags Fas commited to the ‘Mndlu| Emplayar initiative 10 assist the menlal healih &alibeing of
staff. The College has pchuved abcreditation to the Commilted \o Eguably (GZE) standard &l the god
{highest) level. The College has akso implemenied an updalac Egquality and Dwarsily Framing
programme which all stalff have aftended. Refrashar training and training for new starlers s carsiad oul
o ar ongoing basis

During 201 7-18 the Safeguarding and Health and Safety Commitiees held regular scheduled megtings
This further strengthens the lmks between those swvoived i different areas of Ihe College. The
committes indudes povemor representation as wall as representalion fram the wider commuonity to
ensure that the focus remaing nol only within College bul also locaily, regional’y and nationally

The Pravent Agenda Ras bean ncorpareted into e Coega's safeguarding policies and procaduras
wilh semor colege stafl having direcl links 1o regonal and national emalic groups. We use dedicaied
Ssfaguarding Software which enablas ue to take a much more defdiad spproach 16 the suppor
proveded for learners
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MNorthumberland College Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 July 2018
REPORT OF THE GOVERNING BODY (continued)

Disability Equality Stalemaent

T Pl e sk e e el il =il
5 HE LAMTLHE SRR §U ofli] 1PSWE 0

. As part of s accommodalion sirategy he Collsge updaled iz sccess audil Experis in inis feld
conducted a full access audt during 2008-08 and the resulls of this formeag the basis of funding
capial propects aimed @l mproving scoess

o The College has appomtod an Access Co-ordinglor, who provides information, advice and arranges
suppor! whare necessary for students with disabliibes

£ There is a st of specialisl eguipeneany, s0ch a5 radio alds, which ihe College can maks available for
use by sfudents and a rangs of assisive lechnology (& availkabie in the learming cantra

d  The aodmissions pokoy for gl sludents & deseribad in the Colege charler, Appeals agawsl &
decigion nof 1o offer a place are dealt with under the complaints palicy

& The Cofege has made a significan investment in the appointment of a specialisl ieam 10 support
students with learning dificulties andior disabilities and has recenily introduced a dedicated Mental
Health Team whom work across 8l campuses and oufreach centres. There are a number of
student support assisiants who can provde a vanely of suppor for learming Thers 5 3 conlinung
programme of staff development to ensure the provision of a high level of appropriate suppori for
Etudents whao havs learming difficulties and/or disabhtios.

f Specialist programmes are described n College prospeciuses and achievemerds and desiinations
are recorded and published in tha standard College format

g Counsellng and welfare sarvices are descrioed in the Cotlage Student Guida, which & ssued 1o
students together wih Lhe Comptaints and Discolinary Procedure leafiels al induchion

Disclosure of infarmation to puditors

The members wiho held office a1 (he dale of approval of [his repor confinm (het, so far g5 they ere edch
aware, there is no relevant avdll information of which the College’s auditors are unawans, and sach
member has Bken all the steps that he or she ought 1o have taken o be aware 0f Bny relovant sudit
inforrmation and fo eslablish hat the Collepi's sudilors are aware af thal informaban,

The governors spaintad REM UK Audit LLP as audtors on 21 July 2015
As roted above our Chair for the perind from Aprll 2012 1o Decamber 2018 has resigned. The
Governors wish (o place on recarg Thair sihcers thanks o Jacguw Hondersan CBE for all 1he work,

effort and care thal she has given to the Collage and to wish her alf the best for the fulure Her
presance ard slarding will be sorely missaed

Approvesd by orcer of the Members of 1he Carporation on 20anuary 2008 ard signed on & hanaf by

L Tomkins
G hialr
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Northumbariand College Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 July 2018
Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control

The foflowing siatament is providéd to emable readers of the annual report asd acoounts of Lha College
o ebtain & belier undecslandioeg of ks govemance a0 legal siruciung, This slatemel covars the period
from 1% August 2017 to 31 July 2018 and up 1o'the date of approval of the annosl raport and financial
slatgments

The College endeavours fo conduc] (15 DUSINESS:

i Inaccordance with the saven principles identified by fha Committes on Slandards in Public Life
(wefllessness. inlegrity, obmclvity, sccountability, opsnness honesty and leadesshin),

ik Imfull accordsnce with the guidance o colleges fram ke Asscemtion of Colleges in The Code of
Good Governance for English Colleges ["the Code”} and

il.  hevirg due regard 1o the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 inaofar as it s d@pplicable to ihe
furiher education secior

The College i commilted 1o gxhibdmg bos! praches in all sspacls of corporate gowemance and in
pariicular he Coliege has sdopied and complied with the Code. We have nol adopted and thersfore do
nol apply the UK Corporate Govemance Cods, However, we have roporied on odr Corporate
Governance arrangements iy drawing ugon best practice available, mgluding those aspocts of the UK
Corporate Governance Code we conzicer to oe retevan) o the further education secio ard bea!
practice

I the apinion of the Sovernors, the College complies with all the provssans af toe Code, anc 4 has
compbed throughout the yea ended 31 July 2018 The Governing Body recognises thal. as a body
entrusted with both public and private funds, it nas a parcular duty lo observe tha highest standards
of corporaie govarmanca af all imas. In cannying out it responsdditins. i lakes full account of The Code
of Good Gowarnance for English Colleges ssued by fhe Assocation of Colleges in March 2015, which
A formaily adapbad on 260 May 2015



Northumbaerland College Financial Statemenits for the Year Ended 31 July 2018

Statement of Corporate Gevernance and Internal Caniral [continuad)

The Corporation

The members who served on the Corporation during the year and up (o 1he date of signalure of this
report are as listed in the 1able below, Attendance figures are for the period 118117 o 31718}

MName Dabe of Terms of | Date of Status of Commitiess Attendance
appointrent offica resignation of | appointment Sarved
| {years) retirement j|
Jacaul Apponited B r'a Carparation Ramunaration, 1010
Hendersan IChair of Chair and Search,
CHE Gavarnore Raminaration Currcidium and
0 0ad 2012 Commitiee Chair | Gualily, Fingnoe
grnd Resgunces
Reapponted Committees and
0304 2018 Diractor of
Rasighed Businass
Solutons
2012148 Recruitrment
Serviges Limited
| = - A=
| Lynn Tomkins | Appontac & na Caorporation aeanch and it
Wica-Chair Viee-Chair Remuneration
' 22.07 2014 i Committees and
Search | Diraptar of Kirkday
Reappainied Committee Chair | Hal Lirnied.
18,07 2017
Appaintad
Chair af
Govesnars
2042198
Richard Dale 21022012 F) na Finanoe Jrd Finance and AT
Resources Fesources and
Reappoinied | Commiltes Chair | Remuneraton
21.02.2013 | Commillees.
Reappoimied |
18,03 2077
Ras Smith 25.0% 2012 7 e Audit Commities | Audit and B
Cha# Remuneralian
- Reappoinied | Commitiees
[ 2501 2013
| Reappomiad
240207 |
Jude Leitch 26.05 2015 4 ria | Governor l Audit Commitiee | THO
| and ChairfDireciar
Reaopointed of Kirkley Hal
: 17052016

i Lirmited

1M
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Staiemen! of Corporate Governanca and Internal Control (eantinued)

I 26 08,2075

| 3122007

|
Stuprt Evans a o Audi Commites | 23
Raappcinted
17062048
Roben [ 0E2043 4 3108 2017 Saleguarging nfa an
Arckiess MBE g Provvent
Reappoinied Lead
{07 022014 I
Pral, Peter 0.08.2018 4 n'a Governor Finance ard 1010
Girike Resayroes
Feappointed Commites
18072017 .
Fiaina 01112006 |4 s Govarniy i 3910
Standliale
Reappaintad
B1.11.2007
iKaily Angus 18072017 4 n'a Chair of Ala 610
Cufripudum snd
Razppoirited Quality
17.07 2018 Conrrvnmyil oy
Wayne Dalay 1BAF7 2097 ] A'a Fowvarmor fAla &/10
Raappainbsd
1707 2018
Charles faov.2m7 4 nia (G owErne fifa 210
Enderuy
Reappaintad
1T 07,2016
Peter Sweengy | Q1 122007 1 ria Governor and Audil Committes | 88
Safeguarding
| Cand
Mateie Clirdan | 071 19 2014 Ex Ofickn | 31 032048 Principal Saarch and 45
Finamce and
Resourcas
Comimitess
Chweotor of Kirkley
Hsll Limded and
Business
Solubions
Reécruitrmant
Senvces Limiled
ban Clindon a1 04 e Ex Dificao Imenim Princigg | Search and 44
QEE Finance and
Resourcas
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Intarnal Contral [centinued)

Cammitlees
| Direclor of Kirkley
I Hall Limitad ani
Business
Saluticns
I Fectuibrmenl
Bervices Limided
Paul 15102013 nfa Siafl Governor Search i
Emmégrsan Commitles
| Re-glected [
14 102014
I Re-alaciod [
| 12.07,2017 I
Simon Miles k422013 n/a Staff Governor Audit Committes | 810
Ha-alacisd
10122014
Rao-alecied
12072017
Carey 04122047 28 02 2018 Sisdem fifa 2
Donaldson Gavernor
|
| Graig Hacketl | Of 12 2017 MOore | Swdem n'a A
| Governor

Il & the Corparalion’s respangibility to- bring independant [udgement o bear on ssees of siraiegy.
peformance, resources and standands of conduct.

The Corporation is provided wilh regular and timaly informatian-an the overall financial peformance of
the Collmge togethar with other iffarmation such as peaformance agarst funding tamgets, proposad
gapiel expenditune, guallly mallers and persornebrelaled madiers such a3 bealth and salely a0d
eriranmenial [gsues. The Corporation maels fen imes pesr annum
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Northumberland College Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 July 2018
Siatement of Corporate Govaernance and Intemal Control [continued)

The Corporation conducls ns business throwgh 8 number of commdiees. Each commities nas terms of
referance. which have been approved by the Corporation Trhese commitiees are Finance and
Resources, Hemuneration, Search and Audt & new Commites, Guenculum and  Qualny, was
eplabliched in 2017-18. Full minutes of all meetings, axcept thoss deamed 1o be confidenal by the
Corporabon, are avadlable from the Glerk o the Corporation 31

Northumberiand Coliege
Coliege Road
Ashington

Marhumbariand

NEG3 8RG

The Ciera & e Corporabor mainteing @ register of nancil and personal intérests of the govermors.
The regeier s available for ingpecton sl the above address

All governars are able [o lake independant professonz advice in furtherance of ines dubes &l tha
College's expense and have access to the Cherk 1o the Corparation, who (s responsible ta the Boand Tos
ensurng thal all applicable procedures and réguialans ame comglied with. The appoiniment. evaluation
ard remaval of the Clers are matiers fior the Corparalion as 8 whole

Formal sgendss, papers and reports are-suppled o governors in g limety manner, aror o Bosed
maetings, Briefings are provided on an 5d hoo basis.

The Corporation hes a sirong and independend non-execulive element and no individual or group
dominates 15 decision-making process. The Corporation tonssders (hal each of s non-execulive
members is ndependent of management and ree from any business ar tiher relaticnsinp which could
materally inbafars with the axercise of thalr indepanden: judgement.

There & a clear divisson of responsility m hal he roles of e Charman asd Accouniing OHicer are
separale.

All Gevernors give of their tme frealy and na remuneralion or axpensas wedte paid in the year No
Governor o person cannected with a Governor received oy benelit from ary means tested bursanes.,



Northumberland College Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 July 2018

Statemant of Corporate Governance and Internal Cantral (continued)

Appointmenis Io the Corporation

Aty mew appaintmenis o the Corporation are & matier for the considerstion ol the Gorporation a5 a
whole The Corporalion kas a Search Commitles, consisting of four members of the Corporation, which
is responsibla for the selection and nomination of any néw member for the Corporation's consideration
The Corporation & rasponsibla for ensunng thal appropoate traiming & peovided as requead

Mambars of Ihe Carporation ane appoiniad for 3 lerm of office nol axceeding four years bul they can be
re-apposniad for a furser pericd of timea

Corpocation performance

The Gavarning Body reviews s effectiveness via the governance sell-dssessmant process wWhich s
underaken on an anpnusl basis  The process (s rgorous, enabiing governors (o paricipate in the
process and includes an assesement of performance againgt the values and principal responsibilities
sel put in ihe Code. The pedormance of the Chair of Governars end thal of the Commidies Chairs and
ineividual Governars are also asseszed

The owcomes from the self-gssessment axantise are cistussed by the Goverming Body and carmed

rmarmesd amam BPum sk A oo mbms s el mlmm kel memnemrErelbme s o T b mmedimiees B s e o
VT B BT B 17 {1 A1 P Rprad B el § AT Fhatbe 110 T A B R ] (RaT 10 [ELAT 1 BN I | G Mt 0 Rl T 1 B CRedn P R iad I e 1 R

gavernance over the course of the year. The governance improvemeant pian is regutary reviewead by
the Governing Body and progreéss ngainst agreed oulcomes measured.  The process alsa infarms the
govarnor raining and development plan which s aamed al addressing the individual development needs
Of QovErmars,

Tha Governing Body seeks, where possitle, to bench mark its parformance and processes Boainsl
othar FE colleges and those of other organisations outside the FE sector

The Corporation carred oul a seif assessment of its own performance for the year ended 31 July 2018
and everall graded itsell as "Reguires Improvement” on the Ofsted scale. bul with elements of "Gopd"

Remuneration Cammithoe

The Collsge's Remuneration Commiles comprises four mambers of the Corporalion. Tha Commities's
responsibifities are 1o make recommendations {o the Board on the remuneration and benefits of the
Accounting Otficar and other key maragament parsonna

Dietails of remunaration for the year enced 31 July 2018 are s&1 out in note 7 1o tne financial statements
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Statemneni of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (cantinued)

Audit Committea

The Audd Committes compnses four mombers of tha Corporation |excluding 1he Accounting OMcer
and Chair] The Commiltee operates in eccordance wilh wrilten terms of reference epproved by the
Corporabon

The Audit Commilies meels al a mmimum (hree lmes ger annum and provdes & forum for reporting
by tha College's intermal, reporiing accountants and financial stalements auditors, who have access to
iha Commites for independent discusson, wihoul \he presence of College management. The
Commitles also receives and consigers repors fram ne man FE lunding bodies as ey affect tine
Callepa’s business.

The Dollege’s interna! auditors mardor the systems-of (mermal conlral, rsk managemen controls and
QOVEIManta procrRESEs N accordancn: with an agreed pian of inpul and repor thair findings io
managoment and the Audit Commities

Managemani £ responsible for the implamenation of agread audt recommandabong and inbErmal sl
urdertakes porsodic foliow - up noviews o ehsumg such recommandations have bean malemenied,

The Awdd Commilies aisoadvisas the Comporalian on 1he appomtment of ezl reporting sccauntants
and hnancial statemenis auddors and their remuneraton for audd and nor-audil work as wall &s
reporing annually o the Corporation

Finance and Resources Commities

The Fance and ResoutGes Sommilbng compriaes Up o sixmembers of e Sorporaben {Incuding the
Accounting OFicer buf excluding memtars of the Audd Cammittes) The Cammiliee operates n
gccordance with writlen ferms of reference approved by ine Corporalion. [is purpose (s to advise the
corpasation ar the finarcial, haman resources-and astates asneds of College govemnance.

Search Committen

Whilsl the Search Commitiee I5 conslituied for sk mambiss of the Corperation (Inchuding the Char of
tha Composation and the Acoounting Officer) during the reparting panad fhare were two vacancies The
Cammiiles oparales o atcardance with witlen lerms of reference appraved by the Corporaton. s
purpose it o advise the corporalion on Esues relaling o the membership of the Carporation inckiding
composition, alendance, tierms of office, sligihiity, code of conduct ard register of mienests
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Contral (continued)

Curriculum and Quality Committes

The Curriculum and Qualilty Commillee compnses se members of the Corposation [including the
Char of the Corporation and the Agcounting Officer). The Commilbes operatas in accordance with
wiiflen terms of reference approved by the Corporation, |is purpose is 1o advise the Corparaton on
makiers relating o eurriculum sirategy, pedormance and impact and (o moritor standards in feaching
and learming

Tna Commilies will mimai lour imeas & year [o participate in the annual sell-assessment reveaw,
cone dar surmculum design ans developmant and mordaranchmark e Collage's paformance
against thal of similegr colleges nationely. The Commilies is also responsible Tor maintaining
owersight of Cfsled s Comman Inspection Framework and CLAA

Intemal contral

Srope of rezponsbity

The Corporaton s uibimately responsible for the College's system of itlermal contra 2nd for reviewing
ite affectivaness. Howevear, sith 4 sysiem & designed to manage rathar than eliminats tha risk of falure
to achieve business objecives, and can provide only reasonable and nol ansolite assurance against
malaral mssiatemant or loss:

The Corporatcn fas delagated the day-to-day respansibilily 1o U Principal, as Accounling OfMeer, for
miaintabning & anwnd systam of nbernal eantrad that supporta the achievamant of the Collage's policias,
dins ard objectives, whils! safeguarding the public funds and assets for whech he s personally
resporsible; in accordance with the responsicilifies assigned (o him m the Fingneal Memorandum
betwaen Morhumberdand Caollege and the funding bodies. He s also respensible for resorling to the
Corporation any matenal weaknesses or breakdowns 11 indesnel contral

The system of internal contral & designed 1o manage risk to @ reasonable level rather than bo eliminate
&l risk of fadure to achisve policies, aims and objectives. it can theretore only provide reasonabie ana
not ahsoluln assurance of affectveness The sysiem of internal conirol i2 based on an oNgoMng FOCess
designed to identify and priontise the risks to the achievemsant of Callege policies, a@ms and objectives
1o evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the mpact should (hey he reafised, and o
manage them afficienily. effectively and economically. The system of mtarnal control has been in plane
in MNorthumberdandg College for the yasr erded 31 July 2018 and up o he date of appraval of the annaal
report and Sooounts
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Statemen! of Corparate Governanca and Internal Control (cantinued)

Capacily to handia resk

The Cerparahon has réviowed the key risks fowhich the College 15 exposed (ogethar with The operating
fnancal and compliance confrols Ihat nave been implemented to miligate hose risks. The Corporahon
is af the view lhal there is-a formal ongoeing process 1or iwentilying, evalualing and managing e
College’s sipnificant risks that fas baen in place for the panod ending 31 Juky 2018 and up o tha date
of approval of the annoal report and accounis This process i regulany reviewed by e Corporation

The rizk and contred framework

The system of intemal corirgl & based on a framewors of regular management (~farmaton
admmistialive procedures including the sagregation of dulies, and a sysiem of deegaton and
accaurtaElily In particular it iAcludes:

« comprehensive budpeting systems wilh an annual Budgst, which @ reviewsd and agreed by the
fiovesting body

= regular reviews by the governing bady of porodic and armual fimanoisl regorts which indicate
financ:al performence against foracasis

= gelling targnts (o measura nancial and other parformance
 ciEarly defined capital imvesiment contro! gudetines

= Il adopiion of Torms propect maragement discplings. whens appropisie

HorPumbedand Cellege has an inlérmal audd seripe. eulacsdrcad (o Mazars LLP, whish gpedales A
accordance with the requirameants of the ESFA's Post 16 Audil Code of Praches. The work of the inernad
audit service |8 informed by an analysis of the risks o which (ke College i axposed, and anneal interns
audit plans are based on thie analysis. The analysis of nsks and the internal audit plans are endorsed
by the Corporation on the recommendation of the audit Cammities, A1 minimwerm, annuaily, Mazars LLP
provides (he govermning body with 3 repart -on indemral audil aclivey n the College. The report includes
Mazars LLP ncepandent opinion on the adequacy and offecliveness of the Colege’s system of risk
managemend, conirols and governance processes. The report nofed that fhe internal condnol
artangements wars generally adeqguale and affective, bul with fundamaental weaknesses in ncome
forecastng

Rewvew of effectivensss

As Accounting Officer, the Principal has responsibilily for reviewing (he effectivenass of the systemn of
infarnal control. His review of 1he effectreness of 1he =yatam of intornal condrol - nfarmed by

®  fhe ward af the internal audiors



Northumberland College Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 July 2018
Statemant of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (cantinued)

& thiework of the exgcutive managers within tha College who fave responsdility Tor the develocpment
and mainienance of ihe mternal confrol fremeswark

= opommerts made by 1he College's financial statements audifors, the reporiing accountant for
regularnily assurance. in (heir managemant lelters and other raports,

The Accountng Officer Nas been adveed on the implications of the resull of his review of the
effectivensse of the system of internal confral by the Audil Committes, which overseas tha work of the
imbarnal suditor and ofher sources of ssswrance. and a plan o address weaknesses and ensure
comlinuous smprovement of the system 5 in place.

The senor management leam recaives reports setbng oul key periormance and risk indicalors and
considers possible conirol issues browght to their atlerdion by eady warnmg mechanisms. which are
embedded withen the departments and reinforced by risk awareness trainirg. The senior management
feam and the Audd Commillee also receive regular reporls Trom internal audd and other sources of
assurance, which include recommendalions for improvement. The Awdd Commities’s rofe in this area
is confined to & high-level review of the arrangements for internal confrol. The Caorporation's agenda
includes a regular item for consideration of risk and contral and receives neporls thesean from the senior
management team and lhe Audit Commiltee. The emphasis i3 on obtaining the relevan! dagree of
asswance and not merely reporting by exception. Al it December 2018 meeling, the Corporataon
carriad oul the annual assessment for the year ended 31 July 2018 by considenng documentation from
the senior management team and inlermal audit, and taking account of events since 31 July 2018,

Based on the advice of the Audil Committse and the Accaunting Officer, the Corparation isof |he apmicn
ihal the College has an adequale and effeclive framawork for governance, risk menagement and
canienl. and has, in difficdl circumetances, Tullifed ns statutary sssponsiility far “the efective and
effiment use of resowrees. e solvengy of the nstition @nd the body and he safeguarding of their
ass6fs’ This responsibility hae baan laken foraard thraugh the mangar with Sundarland College



Morthumber|land College Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 July 2018
Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Candrol {eantinued)

Gaing conGern

The Govemors assass whether (he use of going concarn is appropriate, Le whelhat there are any
maierial uncartainting related bo events or conddions hat may cast significant doubt on he atbidity of
the colege lo conlinue & a goiry Corcarm

Tra Governors have recefved cash fow forecasis 1o 31 July 2018, wiioh srHow thal (e Group does:
nal have sufficent funds available to meet inel labllilies as they fall dee. The loans due to
Morthumberland County Council gfe gesclosed as due within one year and ihere arg ongoing
disciussions with the Councll regarding it repayment. In additon, the Gavarmars are working with 1he
ESFA to transfer ine College aclivities, assels and lahilites 1o "Sunderand College’ on 1 March 2018,

Forthese reanons, the financial statemeants are prepared on o basis siher (Ran gong concam

Approved by order of the members of the Corpaoration and January 2019 and signed on its
behalf by:

L Tomkins I Clinton
Ghair docounting Offcer



Governing Body's statement on the College's regularity, propriety and compliance with Funding
body tarms and conditions of funding

The Corporalion has consdered its responsitility 1o rotily the Education and Skills Funding Agancy of
maiterial irmegulkarity, improgriely and non-compliance with Education and Sxills Funding Agency tarms
and conditions of funding. under tha financial memorandum/funding agreemant in place batwean e

Coliege and the Educafion and Skils Funding Agency, As part of our consideration we have had due
regand to the reagurements of the Tinancial memoeandumTunding agresmant

We confirm, an behaf of the Corporation, thal afler due engury, and o the bestof our Knowiedge, we
are abie 1o dentily any material iregular or improper use of funds by the College, or materal nan-
compliance with the terms and corditions of funding under the College's Tnancial memorandumifiunding
agreament,

We confirm thal na instances of materal regulartty, impropriaty or finding non-compliance have haan
diggoversd 10 date. If any insiEnces gre demified aner the dote of this stalement, these will be nolifizg
1o the Education sind Shills Funding Ageney

lan Clinton Lynn Tomkins
Bccounting ONicer Chair of Governors
29™ January 2019 20" January 2019
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Statement of Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation

The members of (he Corporaiion, who st 83 irustees Ior the charifable sctivibes of the College, are
required to present audibed financal statements for sach Tinancial yaar

The law agplicablo to chanties in England and the lerms and sonditions of the Financal Memorandurm
betwean tha Eoucation and Skils Funding Agency and the Corparation of the Collage. requires the
corporabion of the college o prepare linancial statements and the Operating and Firancal Review Tor
each financial year in accordance with the 2015 Stalemant of Recommendat Praclice — Accounding for
Furiber and Higher Educabon instiutions, the anrual Accounts Dhrection issued by the Education and
Skills Funding Agenoy, and in aocordance with FRE102 and which give a true and fair view of the stale
of affairs of the Collega and of the Colege's surplusidefict of income aver sspanditure far that petiod

In preparing the financial statements, the cofporation is required fo:

= seps suilabie Bccounting poloigs and apply thom conyistenily
= maks judgements and ashimates (hal are reasonabls and prutant

»  siaie whelhar applicatis UK Accoonhing Standards nave seon folowed, suljost 5 any maienal
gepariures disclosad and exglainad in tho financial statemenis

= prapare fmancial statameants on the going concarn Dasis, unbess (1 5 Naporopriate o BRsUme
Tt 1he Cofloge Will confinue in operation

This corporalion is slso required o prepace. a Members' Repor which describes whal it & Iryong 10 do
and how it is goirgaboul i, Induding infarmation aboul the legal and administralive stalus of the college.

Tre corporalon = resaonsible for keaping proper accounting reconds which disclose, wih reasonabie
Accuracy @1 anmy me, e fnancal posion of he college ano which enable il ioemsure that the linancial
slatements are prepared In accordance with ralevant egisiakon nciuding the Furiher and Highar
Education Aol 1882 and Chafities Acl 2011, and relévan| accounting standards. Il s responsible for
taking steps hat are reasonably open o it o safeguard ks assels and fo prevent end oetec! fraud and
oihar irregularnes.

The corporation & respansible for ihe maintenance and integrity of he college's websile, the work
carmied ou by audilors does not invoive consiceration of these matlers and, accordingly, the auditars
acoepl no responsibility for any changes thal may have coourred 1o the financial staléments since they
were initigify presented on the website. Legisiation in the United Kingdom governing the preparalian
and dissamination of financial staternents may differ from legisation in ofher junsdichions.



Members of the corporation are responsible for ensuring that expanditure 3nd income ate appiied for
the purposes inerded by Pacliament and that the inancial fransaotions conform o ihe authorities hat
govern them. in addition, (hey are responsibie lor ensuring that funds from ESFA are used anly in
accordance with ESFA's grant funding agreements and confracts and any other conditions that may he
prescribed from tme 10 e Members of [he corporation must ansure thal therg are aporopriaie
linancial and managament confrols in placa io safeguard public and pther funds and ansure (hey am
used properdy In addition, members of the corparation ane responsible for securing Eoonamical efficent
anid effecive management of the college's resources and expendituce so thal the benafits thal should
be denwed from ike-appication of publss funds from ESFA are not put at rsk

Approved by arder of the members of the Corperation onMJanuary 2019 and signed on s behalf by

L Tomkins

Chair
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE CORPORATION OF NORTHUMBERLAND
COLLEGE

Opinion

We Rave audited the financial siatemenis of Northumberdand Gollege (1he "Collega™) and is
sUbsdianes (the "Group') for the yaar ended 31 July 2018 which compnse the consolicated and
caflege stelemenis of comprengnsive intome, (ne consolidated and college balance sheets, tha
canaalidaled and college statements of changes In reserves, (he consolidated statement of cash flows
and notes o e finsncial stetemeants, inciuding &8 summasy of ssgnificant scocounling policies,; The
financial reparing framework thal has hean applied in their praparatian is Unitad Kingdom Aczaunting
Standards, including FRS 102 "The Financizl Reporting Slandard appheable in the UK and Republic
of Iretand” (United Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting Praclics)

Ir pusr pirean Bz finangisl slalamonts;

& give alrue and far view of ihe state of the Group's and of 1he College's affaes as af 31 July
2016 and of the Group's and the Calfece’'s dafice of ineame over expanditure fior the year thar
enrdad; ard

& hzva been propady preparad in 2coordanca wiln United Kingdom Generadly Accapted
Accounting Praclice

Basis for opinion

We conductad bur audll It atcardanca wih International Standseds an Audding (L) (158 (UK} asa
applicable lgw. Dur responsiblilies under these slandands are furiher descnbed m the Audiors
respansibiliess for The audid of the firancal sislements sectan of our fepar. We are Independien of
ihe groun and college In secardance with tha athical meguiremnents [hal are relevant boour audit of the
financal stalements in the UK, induding the FRC's Elhveal Standard and we have fulfiled our olher
ethcal responsibiities in aceordanca wilh ihase requiremeants. We baleve thal the audit avidance we
have cblained is sufficien] and appropriais to provede a basis Tor cur oginien

Emphasis of matter non - going concarn basis

In fowrming our opinian on the liranckal sietements which s not modified, we have considerad the
adequacy of the discigsure made in note 1 1o the financa! stalements As described in note 1, the
Colege intends 1o transfer it actvities, assets and liabiities to Sunceriand College The financal
statements far the period ended 31 July 2018 have beer crawn up on & basis other than that of going
CONGarm

Othar information

The other infarmation comprises the mformation included in the Report 2nd Financial Stalements
oiher fan he inancral statements and aur auditlor's report thereon. The governors are nesponsibie
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for e other irformation. Qur oflnion on ihe financial stalemers does nol cover (B othar nfor miation
and we do not express any form of assuranse conclusion hereor.

In sonnestion with aur audl af 1me financial statements, oUf responsibilily & 10 read the other
infarrmation and, in doing so, consider whether thie olher nformation s malerially inconsistent with lhe
financia! statements or our knawleoge oblained in 1he audil or athensise appears o ba matenally
mgsteled. Wwe idenify such material inconsisiencies or spparent maléral misstatements, we are
required |o dalarmine whather thers is a maleral misstatement im the finarcigl stalameants ar a
mataral miestatermant of (he otlee infoemation, IF Sased on the wark vwa Rave parformed, wis
conclude thal there s & maleral misslalement ol this olber informalion, we are reguired lo repod that
fanl

We have nathing to report in 1his regard

Mattars on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to repor in respect of the following matiers where the Post-16 Audit Code of
Practce 2007 102018 msued by the Educalion and Skills Funding Agancy megudines us 1o mpan o you
{F, M CLar caginaary

» acafuate accounting records have not Deen kKept;
o fhe financial stetements are nat roagreement with tha accounting records; ar

= e have nolreceived gl the informalion and explanatsons reguined for ourawdil

Responsibilities of the Corporation of Northumberiand College

Az eopiained more fully m the Sialement of the Corporation's Responsibilibies sel oul on pages 32 o
33, the Corporation 8 responsible for the preparation of inancial statements and for being satisfied
hat theey give & rue and fair view, and Tec such internal control @s the Corporation determine s
nescassary o enabie the preparation of linsncial statements that gra ree rom maierisl misstaiement,
whether due to fraud or error

I preparing the imancial siatements, the Corporation s responsible for essessng the Group's and
ire College’s abifily {0 continue B3 a going conoern, disclosing, as apolicable, matlers related fo going
cancern and using the going carcern basis of accounting unless (he Corparation efther inlend 1o
Bquidate the Group or the College or to coase oparations. o have no realistic allernalivie bul fo do so0.

Auditer's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Dur objectives ate 1o oblain ressonable assurence aboul wheiher the fingncial sistemenis a5 a8 whale
are free from matenal missiztement, whether due to fraud or emror, and (o issue an 2udilor's feposd
ihat moiudes our opinion,. Reasonable assurance s a high level of assurance, bul is pol 3 guaramiee
thidl Sin Suihl CnobiisT i) SUnTHUETCE Wi o iLFH'j 1 dluﬁfﬁ |'iE||.E|..| 8 maisig imisa S nEi
whien | axisls. Misstiatements can arise from fraud or @rror and are considerod malenal [, indmiduzsily
o in the aggregate. hey could reasanably be expected (o infiuence the economic decislons of users

taxan on the basis of hese financial statements.

B



A turther desciptaan of sur responsdiities foe thea dudid of the financial sliatemenis is localad an ka
Fenancial Raporing Councif's website at hitp thwww fre. ong uk/Buddorsresponsiblilies this descripion
forms part of our sudibor's repor

Use of our repori

This report i made solely to ihe Corporalion, @ = body, inaccordance wilh The Funding Agresmant
pubiishec by 1he Education anc Skills Funding Agency and our engagemant ietler dated 20 July 2017
Qur audit work kag bean undartaken go that wa might atate to the Corparation, as & bady, thosa
mallers we are engagad 1o siale 1o them n an audior's report and for no other purpose. To the

fusllest axten] peemitied by law, we do nol apcept or assume responsibiity 1o anyvore athar Ihan the
Comoralion, 25 3 body, for aur audd wark, for this rapar. of for (he oairdans we hava fcrmad

(A Ui tudit A

RSM UK AUDIT LLP
Charerad Accountants
1 8t Jamas Gate
Mewcastle Lipon Tyne
ME1 4AD

) jwuj Jul'?



Consolidated and College Statements of Comprehensive Income

Noics
IRCOME
Funding hady granis 3
Tuiton bees and educalon contradchy i
CHBEr oM 5
Imvesbment meamms &
Tatal incame
EXPENDITURE
Srafl oosie I
Fundamental restructiving costs 7
CifF opdtaling dpinies B
Cepraciation 11
Intarnsd and ethar fingnca cosls i
Total expendiiure
[Befici) before olther gains and losges
(o8] an dapoeal of assals
[Beficit) before tax
Taxation 10
{Deficit] for the year
Memeasurament of nel cefinad benef panson -

sability

Total Comprehensive Income for ibe year

2018 2017
Group  College Group College
£'000 £'000 £'000  £'000

fagng 14867 16,038 18033
2 2647 2378 2878
AT 1,428 2,780 1,576

2 2 7 T

20,309 15,0684 21,174 19,995

13,729 12,860 12,308 11,617

Tan rah 17"r 177
iE.848 8535 r.ara 1060
1,223 1,208 1003 BAL
ATH A7H 30 =
3008 I8N 21121 30172
(2,800) (2787 ey
303 303 1 1
(2,308) (2,454) (o) (176)

Ll a 1] L+
(2,306) (2454) (102} {176

850 asl oay 24T
(1,548) (1,504 Bas i




Consolidated and College Statement of Changes in Reserves

Group

Balance st 17 August 2016

Diaficd from the incoms and aependlure: Accoun|
Qs comprahansive income

Trarstors i winn FEvaluaten & INcorme and expendibire
FRERMGE

Telal comprehensive income for the yaar
Balance at 31 July 201F

College

Balanee st 1% August 2018

[afiel froem TR e and Grpieniiung acedurl
CEher comprahessive inoome

Transfers babvesn revalustion and income and evpandines
FEIENMES

Totad comprehensive incoma for (he year
Balance at 31 July 2017

Group

Batance at 1 Augeres| 20017

Creficit from the income afd expendilere Bocound
CHnae £ompreRsnsia incame

Tranglers BetwEen revalLuBlion B IncHmE and exenditure
FEISrEs

Tatal comprehensive income for the year
Balance af 31 July 2018

Incoame and
expenditure E'“'“""!h" Total
gecouni
£000 EO00 E'0DD
{81 6eh) 10311 F g
(102 [10F)
847 g47
158 1 1EHE) 0
1023 (188) 845
[2182) 10,113 T 881
{3,387) 10,371 930
{1746) {176
sar oy
198 i1a8) g
S6h (198) ™
(2412 10,113 704
Income and
expendiline m:'“”“ Tatal
moCount
£'000 E'900 E0t0
[2.182) HL.T713 ¥.Be3
{2 358) = (220
AB0 - AS0
it (19E) 0
(1. 348 (188)  (1.546)
(3.600] 9.915 B 15




Collage

Balance at 19 August X7

Dehcil rom (fet noomi and expendeiune actound
Otner comarahensie inooms

Tranglors batwoen rovaliation and Income and aupancdin
resETves

Toal camprehensive income far the yesr
Balance ot 31 July 2018

£000 £000 £'000
| 413 18,193 7701
[2.454) {7 454]
B30 = £50
198 (1688} g
(1,400} Jreey {1804},
(3.618) 9,815 6087

ar



Consolidated and College Balance Sheets as at 31 July

Motes  Group College Group College
2048 2047
€000 £o00 E'0C0 €000
Man current assats
Tangible Fixed asaots 11 _ F7.000 26,854 26,323 20,204
2T 000 46954 26 323 18 28%
Current asgets
Stonhs Fak 183 212 186
Trade and oiber recehableg 13 1175 1003 1,923 1 804
Cash and cash squividents 18 455 278 2,059 1,807
1,844 1478 4,194 3807
i e 14 (S (1A (e2EE) (428
Net current (liabilities) [9,661) (8,933) {101} {321)
Totaé asseis less current liabilies 17.339 1621 26,222 25,962
i 5_];'“"‘"“""“ DO Aiver e 15 (6837 6337 (13E0) (135
Provisions
Dl Bnnefa abligations ¥F RV Ry {3, B0y [dA5E) 14,450
Oiher provisions 1 E26T {287 (283 {28z}
Total net assols 6,415 6,087 1081 7.701
Lnresinciad Reserves
Income and espoera=ure acsount (3. 50K (381 8] [2.152] [2.4712)
Revalualion resene _BEs 2918 13,113 13113
Tatal unresiricied rasares G415 6,097 T 88 ¥,
Ihe findnciad s efils on pages 35 1o 71 were approved and aulnorised for issue By Ihe

Corporation andMJanuary 2019 and wern signad an Its behatl an that date by

L Tornmickrs I Clintan
Chair Accounting Officer



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Wotes ime 2017
£'000 E'000

Cash flow from aparating activitlies
| Deficity Yor the year (2,385 (103}
Adjustmant for non-cash ilems
Cepragiation p 1,003
|InGreass ) n Swcks [} (2}
{Incrpasa | in debiors 1,061 11,3309
Inpresssfdeomasn) i credilons due within ong yeor (815 1,240
|Decraase) in cradiloss due afes one year il (20}
{DBcrmasa) in provisions 1 5] (16)
Pensions costs [oss ooninbulion s coyebi 200 130
Adjustmant far investing or financing activities
IFvasiEN inmE (] (7
inleresl meyabie TR bl
(Surplus) on sale of fiuad assals (303} 48]
Met cash flow from operating activities (@7 5] B30
Cash Nows from invesiing activities
Cagstal grants racalved fiks 1,635
Investman Inceme 2 7
Fayments mede 1o acoune feid assels [908] {2717}
Met cash Aow from investing activities [2a3) [1.085)
Cask Nows Frorm finsnceng ollvities
Interest Paid (3] (140)
Repaymiants of amounts bosrosad (353} 1351}
Net cashilow from financial activities [3B7) (491)
(Decrezse) in cash and cash equivalents in the year {1,604 (a0}
iCash-and cash eduivahents o beginming of the year 18 2000 2745
Casn and cash souvekentys o ead of B yiear - 455 2,5
Movament in cash equivalents {1, E04) (E88)




MNotes to the Accounts

1. Bistemani of accounting policies and astimation technigues

The following accouning polcies have besn agphed congstently In desing with nems which ame
consderad materal in relation o the financal statements

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Stsfement of Recommended
Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2015 (tha 2015 FE HE 30ORP), the Colege
Accounts Direction far 2017 o 2078 snd in actcordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 ~ “The
Firancial Roporfing Standard applicable in the United Kingdam and Republic of Irefand” (FRS 102)
;ihg %Iﬁf i @ public benafit enlity and has therefore applied the relevant public benefit requirements

The preparation of inanclal siatements in compiiance with FRS 102 reguires the use of oeriain critical
aecountng estimates. | also raquires managemen 10 Bxercise judgement in apphying the College's
ACCounlang polices

Genaral Information

Morthumbenand Cofegs 15 4 corporalon esiablshed under ke Further and Higher Eaucation Acl 159592
gs A Engleh genaral coliege of Further adiucation  Tha addrass-af the College’s principal place of
businass & given an page 22 The nature of the College’'s cperations are sal oul-in the Repon o the
Gouerning Body.

Basis of accounting

The finandal slatements sne prepaced in sccordance with (he hislorical cosi conveniion as modified by
ime use of previous veluations as deamed cosl 81 iransiton for cerdain non-curran| agsets  The financial
stalemenis are presertad in Sieding which s alsa the lunciona! currency of the Callege. Monetary
amaounis i these fingncial stalements are ngunded (o the nearest wha'e £1.000, excepl where olhenwse
indizalad

Basis of consolidation

The conssiigaied financial skatements. incude (he College and 18 subsidianes. Kirkiey Hall Limiied and
Ausimess Salutions Recrutment Servces Limted . contrallad: by the Groug. Contral is achieved whess
the Group has the power (o govern (Be fnancial and aperating policies of an entity so as to oblan
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benefits from ks activities. The results of subsidiares aoquired or deposed of guring the period are
included in the consolidated income and expendiiire account from the date of seauisitfon or up 1o the dale
cfdisposal Intra-group sales and profits are eliminated fully on consolidation. All firgncial statements are
rrradeup 1o 31 July 2098

Golng concerm

The Goverrors assess whelher iPe use of going concern 15 appropriate, Le whether there arma any
matersl ynesrtaniies releled to events or condibions that may cast sigredicant doybt an tha abiliby of
Ihe college (o contirue 85 & going concern.

The Governara fiave receved cash flow forecasts (o 37 July 2078, which show thal the Group does
nat have sufficent funds available 1o maest their labililies &s hey Ll due. The ioars due o
Martnumbartand Counly Council are declosod as dus withn one year and these are ongoimg
discussions with 1he Council, regarding ils repaymernt In addition, the Govemaors are working with the
ESFA fo trarsfer the College aclivibes, assets and llabilities 1o "Sunderland Caollege’ on 1 March 2079

Forthess reasons, e fingnca! stolements gre prepared on @ basis other than, ghing concam

The asselsand llabiliVes will be ransferred as par of the Iransaction gl thetr carrying vaive. . Mo maienial
adjustrmenrt arose 25 3 resull of ceasing o apply the gaing concém hasis,

Recognition of income

Governmend revenue granis inchude lunding body recurrent grents and other grants and are gcoounted
for under tha acrual model as parmitted by FRS 102 Funding body mecurment grants ame measured in
ke wilh et pol medes lor The poriod of whst e receivabbe and depend on he parolse inpome sliesm
irvolvad. Any under or aver achievement for the Adult Education Budget = adjusted for and reflecied
in the leve’ of recurrent grant recognisad in the income and expenditure account. The final grant income
is netmally determined with the conaluson of the year end reconciiation process with tha funding bedy
following fhe wear end, and the results of any funding audite. 16-18 learner-responaive funding is not
normally subsect to reconciiation and is therefora not subject to contract adjusimants

The reurrent grant from HEFCE represents the funding aliocations sftributable to the current financal
vaar and is crpdited direct 1o the Statement of Comprehensive Incoms

WWhere part of 2 governman grant is deferred. the deferred elemant s recognses as deferrad income
wilhin creditors and alloGated belween credilors due wilkin ane year and creditors dus afler more than
one Jags AR oo ooriate

Grants (incfuding resaarch grants) from non-govarnment S0UrCEs 3M8 MACOgNESd In incoma whan the
College s enbitled fo fhe mgome and performance refaled condiions have been met: Income receved
n advance of performance related condiions Seing mel & recognsed a8 deferred ncoma within
aneditors on the balance sheel and réleased [0 income a8 the conditions. are met

wovarnment capital grants ero capilalisad, held as deferred income and recognisad (n income over The
expicied usefid ife of the assel, under the accrual method as permitted by FRS 102, Other capital
grants are recogrised in income when the College is entitled o (ne funds subject to any performance
refated conditions being met

A1



Imoama fram wition fees is stated gross ol any expanditune which & not a discount and is reengnisad 0
the penad for which il s receiveo

All incoma fram short-térm dapasits i accrued 16 1he Income and axpendilure account in the period ™
which it 15 arned on 3 recevable basis

Accounting for post-employment benelils

Post-employment benefits o employees of the Coliege are principafy. provided by the Teachers’
Persion Sohema (TFS) and the Local Governmenl Pension Schama [LGPS). These are dafinec barnalil
plans, which ae exlamally funded and confracted oul of the Stale Second Pansan

The TPS iz an urfunded scheme Contritubions ie the TRPE are calcidated so as 10 spoodd ihe costof
pensions over employess’ working lwes with the College in such a way thal the pension cost s a
substantally level percentage of current and Tulure pensionable payroll, The coniributions ane
delermined by gualted aciuares on the basis of valuations Using a8 prosoective benefil method. The
TPE is.amuli-amployar schame and (Me College = unable o denlify i sham of the underying assets
and liahilles of (he scheme ona corsstent and reasonabla basis, The TPE = therefore Ireated &= a
defined canlribution plan and the confributons recognised as &n axpanze in the income stabamern
fhe petiods during which sedvicas are randered by smployees

Thie LGPS & & lundad schieme, The assas of e LGPS are measuned ueing ciosing lar values, LGRS
liabdities ore measured using the projectad unil credil mathed and discoantad al he curent rate of
relurn on a hgh gualty corporate bond of souivalent lerm and currency lo the lalkities The actusria)
valuanions are chiained al least nennially and are updated al each halance sheel dale The amounts
charged [0 operatng Surplus are the current senvice cosis and ihe costs of scheme mroduclions, oenmiit
changes, sattiemants and curiilmants Thay are included as par of staff cosls as incurred. Ned interast
on the net dafined benelit [abiiyiassal ix also recognised in the Statemant of Comprehensive incomea
and comprisas (he inlerest cost gn the delined benefit obiigation and interest income on the schame
assets, calcolated by mulliplyng the falr valise of (he scheme assels al he beginmng of the pencd by

Pl s=las | saamd Himre i les e el ol ee Thes A mfmene b Bl et il N alis ]
WIE fElE WEEd 0 CIStOUN The Denedil cougalions. | e Offefence Celwesn e IMergs] iIncome o Ine

SCHEME 35ER18 And 1he actusl relurn on e SCHeme ASsals 8 recogrsed (n infarest and other inance
Cosis

Actuanal gans and (08868 gre recogrised mmadataly i aciuarial gains and lassas

Short term Employmant benefits

Shorl ferm employment benafits such &5 salares and compensalad abeences (holiday pay) are
rooognisad asan expensa in he year in which Lhe amphoyeas rendor service 1o the College. Any unuesed
benelis are acorued and measured as the addiianal amount the Collage expects 10 nay a8 a result gf
e unused antithemant.



Enhanced Pensians

The aciual cosl of sry enhanced ongoing pensson o @ former mamber of uaff s pald by = college
anndally. An -estimate of the sxpected future eoet of any anharcamant i 1he ohgoing pension of 3
former mamiber of steff is charged in full 1o the College's incorme in e year il he member of staff
rapras, In subsacuent years 8 chasge is made (o provisions i he balance sheel using the snhanced
pension spreadshest provided oy the funding bod es

Nen-current Assels - Tangible fixed assetls

Targivle fixed a3sels are skaled ai cost less acoumulated deprechalion and sccumuiaied impairmerni
Ipsses. Cerlain dems of fixed assels thal had been revalued o fair value on or prioe bo {he dale of
frans:ton 1o the 2015 FE HE SORP, ae measured on the basis of deemed cosl. beng the revalued
amaurt &t the date of tha: revaluation.

Lang and bulldings

Freehoid land ig not deprocialed as i s congiderod (o hava an infinda useful Ha

Freanoid buildings arme deprec@ios avar thelr expected usetul econamic lile ta tha College of 50 years
The College has a policy of depreciating major adaptations io budldings over the period of their useful
econormc iife of 50 years,

Where land and budldings are acquired with 1he aid of specific government grants, they are capliakised
and deprecialed a3 above. The relstod grmns are credited lo 8 deferrad income accouni wilhan
creciters. and are raleased Lo the income and expendilure account over the expected uselul economic
Iife of the relaled assel on B sysiemabc basms consisient wilh the depraciglion policy, The defamrad
incame & alincaled belwean cradibons dus within amg year and those dus Gfter more han one year

A-reviaw Tor impawrment of 3@ fixed assel Is carred gut f events or changes in croomsiances indicate
ihal the carmying amount of any 'eed assal may not be recoverable

On adoption of FRS 102 in 2015-18, the College followed the ransitional provizon 19 retain (he ook
value of most land and bulidings, which were revaiued in 1993, as deamsd coel bui nol 1o adop! a policy
af revaluztions of these propertias in the fulure. The Coliege did however revalue the surplus land at
Kirklay Hall and ihis produced a revaluaton surpius of £7 2m.

Arente unaar congirection ane dgeounbes for ot coat, Bbacad on ke valua of arcnilects canificates ans
other direct cosls, incurred 1o 31 July They are rol deprecsaled unlil they are brought into se.
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Subzaquent expemndifure cn axishing fxed ssssls

Where significant expendiure & ingured on 1Engitle fixed assets alter imtal purchase | I8 chargea o
ineomE - the pacad i 5 incumad, uniees [ increases the uture benatits to the Collega, m which case
it iy capiialined and deprecisied on the relevant bess

Equipmand

Fquipmant casting less than L1 000 per individual item s recoghised as exgendiuse in the pariod of
asqursdion. All other equipment 1S capialised at cosl

Capitaisod aquipmant :& cepracialad on & straghi-ing hasis over 15 remaning useful eeanomio ife as
foliows:

s compualer equipmenl 4 yegrs
s furnifure, fixtures and fitlings 12 yuare
Mard and fack

The berd and flock ncuded in fived assete are included at fair valun

Borrowing coste

BoFrawirk] Costs ane frecognsed a5 expendiure it the penad in which they ar incurmeg



Leased assets

Cosis in rezspect of operaling |essos are chargod on a siraghl-ing bass ovar the iease lerm o ihe
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Any lease premiums or incentives retaling ko leases signed after
1% August 2014 are spesad over the minimum laase lerm. The Collega has taken advantage of the
ransitional exemptions in FRS 102 and has releined the policy of spreading lease premiums and
incentives o the daie of (he firsl maket ranl review for leases signed before 19 August 2014

Leasing agresments which iransfer (o the College substantially a1 the benefits and risks of owrerstp
of ap assat are reated as finance leases

Assats neld under finance leases are recognised inilally at the fair valve of the lzased asset (or, If lower,
the present value of minmum lease payments) al thve inceplion of the lease, The cofresponding liabidity
te the lessor i Incuded in the belance sheet a5 a finance lezse obligation . Assets held under finance
leases are included in fangible fixed assets and deprecisied and assessed for impairrment losses in the
Sa3me way a5 owned assals.

Mirdmum |lease payments are apporiioned between the finance charge and lhe reducton of he
audsianding lkabdity. The finance charges areg allocaled over the period of the i8ase in proparion 1o the
capital element outstanding.

Inveaiments

IvEshTe s iR subsdianan

Inwestments 0 subsidiaries are accounted for 8 cos! less Imparment in the indwdual Tiascial
siEbamanis.

Inveniories

Inveniones are sizied al the lower of ther cost and nel rezgisable value. Where neCessary, provision is
made for checiete, siow-moving and defective items

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash in hand, daposits renayatle aon demand and ovardeaie, Deposits ars rapavahis an
demand if they are in practice available wihin 24 hours withoul penally,

Cash equivaloris are short e, highly (sguid investments thal ere readily conwortible o known amounts
of cash with inzignificant rsk of changs in valus, &n nvesimant guaifes as 3 caeh pouivalent wihan (| has
misturily of 3 manths or less from the dale of acquisiton
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Financial liabilities and aquity

Financial liabilbies and equily ang classfed according 10 e substance of the financal nsrumeant
conraciual abigatiors, rather than the fmancisl instrumem s laga! farm

Al loans, investments and short term deposits held by the Group are classified as basic financia
irstruments in Beccordance with FRS 102 These mstruments are ity recorded al the ransacton
price lass any transacion costs (histofical cost) FRS 102 requires that basic financal instruments are
subsaguenlly measured al amoised cost However the Gfoup has calculated thal the difference
balwann the histoncal cost and amartised cost basis s fat matenal and so these financiE! nstruments
are stated o the balance shestat Ristorical cost. Loans and invesiments hal are payable or receivasle
Wil one wear are nol discounted

Taxation

Tre College & consmderad to pass the lesls Sol oul in Paragraph 1 Schedule @ Finanoe Act 2070 and
theredore i rmeets thie cefilicn of a charntable company lor UK corporalion {ax purposes. Accordingly
the Collage s podentially exampt from taxation n respect of income o caplial gains recewad within
calegories coverad by saclions £ TH-488 of (he Corporation Tax Act 7010 ar Saction 256 of the Taxation
of Chargoable Gains Act 1882, to the extar thal such income or gans are apphod oxcliEsely o
charilahle puposes

The College |s parfally axempt in resoect of Value Added Tax sa ihat it can anly recover araund 3%
of the VAT chargad on e inputs  Irmecovaranie VAT on inputs is moludad 0 the coste of sach Inpuls
Bnd added to e cosl af langble fived asseis as aporopriate, whene e ingus themselves are langibe
foues ansels By nature

The College's subsidiary companies are subject to cosporation lax and VAT in the same way &5 any
commarcia arganisaticn

Provisions and conlingent lfabilities

Provisions are recognised when

= [he College has & presen legal or corstructive obligalion as a resull &f @ past evenl
« |t & probable that a transfer of economic beralit will be regured to setlie the abligation, and
» @ felighie estmale can be migde of the amount of the obligation,

Where the effect of i~e e value of maney 15 maleral, ihe amount expecled 1o be reguired 1o sedile the
phligason & recogrisad at presen! value using & jei-lae dicount rate. The wnsanding af e dscount i
feoagnised as a finance casl in the statement of comprefansive ncame in 1he perod § enses



& contingent liabilty anses from a past everd thal gives the College & possible oblgealion whose exisience
will anly be canfirmed by the ocourrence or otheniiss of Lneartain fulure evenis not wholly within the
candrol of the College. Cortingent habidites also anse in ciroumstances where a provisson would alhenwise
be made bul eiher A8 nod probable that an ouifiow of resources will be required or the: amount of the
abligation cannoy be measured retiably

Canlingen! labdties are nal recognisad in the balance sheal bul are disclosad In the nolesio the finarcial
stalements

Agency arrangements

The College acls as an agenl in the collection and payment of discretionary suppor funds, Relited
payments receivad from the funding bodies and sutseguent distiursements to sludenis are excluded
fram tha income and expendilure af tha Collega whete the Collage s exposed o minimal nsk or @njovs
minimal economic banefit related o the tansaction
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2 Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncerainty

In preganng these inancial stalements, manageman! nave maae 11e following judgements:

Delenmine whelher leases entered inlo by the College gither as a lessor or a lessee gre operating
of inance leases. These dedisions depend on an assessmant of whaiber (he rsks and rewards of
ewnershin hava baen iransferred from the leszof (o e leetas on & leate by laase bakls
Cetermine whether there &e indicalors of impairmend of the group’s langble assels. Faclors iaken
nta consideration in reaching suth @ decisson inciude the economic viability and expected future
lirancal performance of (he assel and whare it is 8 component of a larger cash-genereting unit
tha viahilitty and axpacted future pafarmanca of that wnit

Otier key sources of gsifmation unceriainty

Fangihte lixed assels

Tangible fixed aasats, other than invesimand properiies, are depregiated over ther usaful ives
iahing fnbo sccourd résidual values, where aporopriaie. The astudl lives of the asscts and residus
valies are assessed annualy and may vary depending on 2 number of fgchors. b re-assessing
asset [ves, factors such as technaological innovation and mantenance orogrammas are taken o
account Residug! value assessmanis consider issues suth as future markel conditions, the
remaining e of the dssat and projected disposal values

Lacal Goveramanf Panstinn Schame

The present value of Ine Local Govermmant Pension Scheme dafined benefit liabiity depends on 3
nismbar of factors |hal ame detarmined on an achiarial basis using a venely of assumphons The
assumptions usad In determining the nel cost (income) for pensions nclude he discount rate. Any
changes in ihesa assumptions, which are desclosed 0 nole 24, will impact the camymg amount of
e pension ehdily, Furthermore, & moll fTorward aparoach which propects tesults from the latest full

s ]l il i At wd T Bleeelh UL e bmmmey s lmae e s sl pmresd oo semliilmes
SCiuglid] vaimeol PErATiod & 7 Wi oo v Nad SRCh U3ty Oy uit obddly if voineinmg i

pensians (abeity-al 31 July 2078, Any differences betwesn the figures derived from (he radl Tonward
aopraach and a full aciuarial valuation would fmpact an the carmyng amount of the pansion liabiity
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A Funding body granis:

Recurrant granis

Education and Bills Fundeig Acsnoy 1618 {awcl
apprant-oeships)

Education ond Skills Funding Agency - sl

Education and Skills Funding Agenoy - spprenticeships
Eduacation and Skills Funding hoancy » ESF

Rrleases of gowarmmesml capital granks

Qther ESFA Income

Higghar Educatian Funding Council

Frannfisad

HE graril

Loasl suthariiies and Schoos

Total

4. Tuition fees and education contracls

FAureanced (evel counsas desgnated lnr FE Laans
BEA Tawded provisien - Adull Skills

Full easl proisinm

Higher education courses geaignated for HE Laans

Tolat Mihan [see

Total

2018 2017
Group College Group College
£'000 £'900 £004 000
.66 Ll [ B0 B.O3
2.167 2.157 231010 2350
2,932 2132 1,804 1.884
2150 215 2523 25X
a2 2 B B
30 an L1 512
1R e v X
43 £2 3 =2
9 g it 20
1540 16 61 261
14088 44087 16,04 !.!'Q!!
L] ] 2047
Group College Group  Collége
ED00  E000 E000  E°000
722 22 B4a Bda
5 58 T T4
144 344 474 474
1822 15%2 1032 1032
Zear HEAT 23 2.5
2647 2847 23 231




§. Othar incoma

Catenng and rasidances

Ot incoms ganarsting aclivilins
Ridaasn ol non-govimmant captal grans
Exarronaion e mooma

Faming acirdliss

CHirper o

Tatal

6. Investment income

Tiher inforest recavabin

2048 2047
Group  College Group College
E'tg £'000 Eool  E'DDO
190 186 1m 171
1658 345 1558 ags
5 58 ad 34
KR 34 43 43
L 150 180 140
BB G 64 764
2671 1,438 2,750 1,578

078 2097
Group  College Group College
£'a £000 £ Q00
2 2 7 7




7. Staff costs - Group and College

The everage number of persons (INCluging key managemeni personnel) employed by the Collage
durirg the year, expressed as full ire aquivaierts was:

ri k)] 2017

Group Coliege Group College

No No. No Na,
Teachng Wall 223 23 24 214
Mor-taaching staff 208 173 152 116

5iaff costs for the above persons £'a0o [} E'0od  E'000
Wages and salaries 10325 &481 2554 RAS
Social mecurty costs BT ™ T30 737
CHhgr perssn cosls 1848 1872 1,758 1,858
Payresll sy Beylal 13,114 12,254 12,038 11,274
iContracted oul stafing sarvices 818 615 M3 43

VA.72R 12869 12388 11.617
Fundamental testicluring coels — Contraciual 730 730 7T
Total Staff cosls 14,450 13,580 12573 117984

Emolumeants of Key management personnegl, Principal, CED and Accounting Officer and other
higher paid staff

2078 mir
Mo Na,
The number af key management pessonnel including fhe - 4

Principel, CED and Azcouniing- Officer was:
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Hmy mianagmend Othar sialf

parsonne
2018 T 2018 2017
No Mo, No. Mo
L0001 o D80,000 pa. 4 i 0 0
F80.001 to £90.000 pa 1 1 0 0
E100.00% o E110,000 pa 2 L i} i
E120.001 ba 130000 pa o 1 ) 0
£130.001 o £140.000 p.a 1 [ i} 0
T 4 2 1]
Py (T Va1 T R W TR LT e Tele up a8 i
2018 247
E'no £'a00
Sedarme 35 04
Besnedits, iy il 1] b
Emphoyes Wi A7 L)
47 A48
Pansion contnbations 1t %]
Tolal emoluments 478 _a88

There were no amounts due 1o key mansgemerd peraannel that wees waived o y=ar, norany salary
arangemants n place

One indhwidual inclucad In ihe key manegermen] personnel recenved 206 for compensation of lass of
offiga. The pavmen! was aporoved by the Board,

The abowe emalements wilede amounis payable 1o the Pringipal CEO snd Acoounting Officer (aho 3
the Nighest Dasd officer)

There were (wo Prrgipats employed in the year ending 31 July 18 The dewails of tha Pancipals
BmpUMEan s are & flows -



Principal fram Aug 17 ta April 18

Salamas
Hanediis & kind

Ermmilansrs il

Prnsioh contribuiions

Principal from April 18 to July 18

Sataring

Banafits in lind

Ernployirs NI

Pansior conbribulsns

ms 2017
E£'000 £000
6 110

i o

7 14

83 124

12 18
098 2017
£'000 E'Qa0
13 o

0 o

5 0

Ad o

1 o

Thea pension contnbulions in respect of the Principal, CED and Acoourting Officer and senior post-
holders are in respect of employver's conimbutiops o the Teachers' Pension Scheme and the Local
Covernment Pangion Scheme gngd are pald 2t 1he same rate as for other employeas.

The members o the Corporation other than the Principal, CEO and Accounting Offcer and thie staff
members did not recens sny payment from the instiution obther than the reimbursemant of traved and
subsisience experses inourted in the course of INeir dufies. No governcrs were reimbursad expenses

during the year (2016.7- £0)

B Other operating expoanses

i01e 2017
Group  Caollege Group  Coallege
oo £'oo0 £000 E'000
TeAching costs 87 J4a7 587 3,502
Won-teachng costs 1.941 1,829 ZASY 7,140
Pramises cosis 1.220 1.418 1328 1.328
Total B.EAE 6.515 7.372 T.060




OEher opEraling eapenses inGiune:

ALidilors niffunisEabanr

Firancial siaements s i 24 78 4
indsmal 2udi* 28 20 26 o8
Other servicas provednd by the fmancaal staiements
auid it
TPE FPansion Auwdd 1 1 1 1
Taxation camphisnce z 2
Hire of assats bnder ooeraling laases 244 44 248 246
Gani{iese) on desposal of assas aa a03 1 1
* ncludes £24,000 o rospact of the Collegs (701617 £24.000)
= meludes B35 TET In respech of tha Collage (3016817 E25.72T)
9. Interest and other finance costs
Group and Collega
2018 2017
£000 £'000
O bank lcans. syardrafls and ot loans L] 209
On findnce leases 33
Fangon finance coils {nola 4] 105 120
Total 478 Eire]
1. Taation

The members beligve thal College was not isble tor any Corporalon Tax ansing owl of iis aclvilies

guring either penoo,
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11, Tangible fixed assets (Group)

Land and buildings Equipment Herd and Tolal

Frock
Assels n
Freohold ™ l:m!l'l-:f
consiruction
000 E'000 E'o0 EG0 00D
Cont or valuation
A1 Aigiest 2017 10,7493 2478 8170 250 #1420
Addilans { 148) - 2,048 - 180
Transfars 2061 (2162 131
AL 31 July 2018 31,708 86 11,350 250 43,301
Deprociation
Al 1 August 2017 CRER - 7m3 1. 15,168
Charge for tha year L4a - BB (&) 1,273
At 31 July 2018 8,687 3 7684 10 16,391
Met ook value &l 31 July 2018 23019 A 1 BSE 240 27000
Nt ook valus #t 31 July 2017 21,654 7278 2,157 73 2633




Tangible fixed assels (College only)

Land and bulldings  Equipment  TMEAM oy

Frock
Assels in
Freehold '_ﬂ' o
eonstreclion
£000 £oon £o0D £000  E000

Cost or valuation
ALY August 00T 29,760 2278 &.036 251 41328
Agditings [148) - 2026 1.87E
Transfers 2061 [2,062) 131
Al 31 July 2918 .67 -] 11,1683 251 43203
Depreciation
At | Buguist 2017 a1 : 6915 15 15042
Charge for e yeor 545 - Bee 0000 (8 1208
Ay 3% July 2018 865 - 7,584 10 46,249
Ml book value at 31 July 2018 23,018 &6 1,609 41 26954
Mgl Dok vislum &1 31 July 2097 21,648 2278 2121 2% 26981

The transdional rules set aul in FRS 15 Tongibie Fixed Assels have besn applied accorangly. the book
values of imglamantation have baan retained.

Lang and bidldings were valued for the purpose of the 1993 financal staiements &l deprecsaied
replacement cost by gualified staff employed by Narthumbertand County Council, In 1928 the land and
busldings of tha former Kirkley Hall College ware valued al cepreciated replacament cost by a firm of
imdependent charlered surveyors. That vaiualion was brought info the books of Northumberland Callege
follewing mearger with Kirkiey Hall College on 1 January 2000, Other tangible fixed assels inherited from
the LEA al incorporation have been valuad by the Cargoration on a deprecialed replacament cosl basis
with the assistance of independent professional advice

iLand and bulldings with a nol book value of E7, TEBk Rave baon financed by mxchegeer funds through
for mwarnpie; the receipt of cagpital grants . Should 1hese assats be sold. the Callege may be llabie, wrmder
s ferms of Ihe Firance Memorandum with he Eduscation ard Shils Fundmg Agancy, to surrender thie
procaads



i mharited |and a5 Buildinge fad nof ceen valued, ey would have beeh included at 3 cosl and nat
book vaifue ofnd,

Under FRS 102 transitional arangements. the College in 2015-16 revalued s surplus land a1 Kirkley
Hadl and Whig mswbted i & révaluabion value af £%.2m

The naet book valve of [and and bulkdings includes an amount of £259% (617 £201 k) in raspect of
assals beld under finance lagses

Tha niat book value of equaprmant nclddas an amount af £1,7158k (2006-17 E283K) in respect of
assels hald under fingnce leases

12. Non current investments (College only)
2017 2018

£'000 £'000
Irwvasiments in subsiciary comaanies - 3

Tho College ewwna 100% of the 1 iasund ordinary £1 shames of The folowing subsidiary cormpaonies, bath
of wich are incorporated i England and Wakes and have Ihe foliowing prircipel activities:

Kirkiey Hall Lid Various commeroial activities centred ai Kirkdey Hall
Bussnaess Solubons Recruibment Recrutiment agency of both lemporary and permanan
Sarices Lid amployaes for lbeal and regianal employers.
13.Trade and Other Recelvables
018 2007
Group Collage Group College
E'000 £'000 E000 £000
Ampunts !Elling due within ane year:
Tl roceivnies 15 a1 Ard if i ]
Armguints pwed by graud enderzkings - - 3 [T
Prapaymants and sccrusd incoeme Bal 812 1,849 1 626
Total 1,178 1,003 1.023 1,604

al



14. Crediiors; amolinis falling die within ana year

2018 w17
Group College Group Coliege
£"0800 £ao0 ] E'000
Lovma and dvardmfts BOET B.O27 A58 58
Chigabond Lndes Trancs eases §Ta 274 114 114
Trade payatiies TG T4 1, edf 1224
Ampnnts o 1o grodp urderaknps 134
Subsidiany UnOBTLEHRGE &
Cithar taxation and social sacorty 46 343 245 178
Arcnimés G oefares inoemn 1,761 1.877 1,73 1857
Dwinmed inoome - govammant Sapital graris i T4 16 166
Amiuniks owedt 10 the ESFA 48 AR 430 430
Todal 11,505 17,471 4,395 4,128
15, Craditors: amaunts falling dua after one year
HAT
Group College Group Coflege
Eoan Eodia £000 £000
Loans 7668 668
Dbigationg uhdar Tnancs eases BE3 B3 385 Iy
Dfarredd incoma « eeseemvmen) cupital grans 5,874 s5474 5465 5485
Tots £.837 E! 13,518 Hllﬂl




1B. Maturity of debt

Loans

Loans are mpayable as klows.

I one year o less

Belwedn oree and wy yeers
Eebwmen bwo and fve yaare
Iy From Yyesars on o

Fots

2018 017
Group Callege Group College
£'000 £'D00 £'000 E'ood
8027 8027 158 58
- - 365 383
- = 1,141 1,141
. {163 6,163
8,027 8,027 8,027 Bpar

The College nas two loans with Northumberznd Caunly Councl wiich are boih securad on a porton

af the freehold land and bulldings of the College.

A lpan of £E3 0m, repayable by nstalmants faling due pebween 1 August 2011 ana 37 Asguel 2025,
alirecls &n interast rale of 3, 72% and the amoun| outstending on this loan el 31 July 2018 is £1,852k

A loan of E6 5m, repayable by instaimenis falling due betwesn 31 March 2015 and 31 March
2065, altracts an interes! rate of 4 55% and (he amoun! oulstanding on this loan as at 31

July 2018 is £5,17 5%,

Finance |leases

The met inance lease obligations 1o which tha instituton is commilled are

W Rl yEAr o [8Ss
bBebwaan two and five vears
In fve yeurs or mone

Tetal

018 mT
Giroup Callege Group College
ECOD £°000 £'aod Eoon
T4 27 114 114
e he0 20 220
i 103 B3 63
1137 1,437 L 497
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17. Provisions

Group and Collegea

AL T August 2017
Expendifumg in ing penod
Ariclibaors an pfiosd

A 31 July 2078

18. Cash and cash eguivalents

Dash and cagh egunalants
Ciumrdrafin
Tt

Cash snd cash smqulvslans
Cvaridrafis
Total

Defined
benefid Enhanoed
obligations PRSI ONiE Tatal
Enon EBeD E00n
4,450 oz & 74z
[¥,300] [21] {1321}
BSL 16 [rs
E|HH 287 ﬁﬂﬂ'
Group

fis & fis &t

' August Cash 31 Juty

20T Mows 2018

£'odo E'0d0 Cooo

2055 (1,604 55

2,059 [1,604) 455

Caollege

BAg al g al

1 August Cash 31 July

amr Mows 018

E'000 £'000 E'000

1.807 (1.531] 478

1,807 {1,531 2TE




19. Capital and other commitments

Commilmenia cantsmensd far s 17 Aol

20. Lease obligations

01T
Group and

Coiinge
oo

1,181

AL 2T duly the College had minimum (e8ss paymenls under non-tantelablie operating lsases 45

foilows:

Futura mindmum lease paymenls dus

Land and buildings
Mol later (han cna year
Lafer fiian one yesrand nod @ier than Tve yeams

Luter han five years

Qther
it o han oree e
Later Fwn ong yearand nol s thanr e yrans

Laber trean fivé yeam

21.  Contingent liabilities

Thiets are no canlingant liabiltes

2018 2097
Group and Graup and
College Coliege
£'000 E'000
106 104

L 303

J16 8]

Tag 500

CH 0

145 165

28

225 263




22, Events afier the réporting pernicd

On & Seplembar 2018 (he Corporation agreed in principle that the College should mearga wik
Sunderiand College. It is currently anticipated that this wif be completed on 1 Mareh 2019,

213, Financial Instriments

The carryng amount of the Group’s finangsl insiryments at 37 Juky wene

2018 2T
Group Giroup
E'oaoe Lot
Financial Assets

Cabd melruments measared ol smodised osls a1 1517
82 1,547

Financial Lake |ilies
Measumd 5 amartasd co 4162 g
L oan commidrnns - Herd 8097
12,189 11,854

2



24 Retiramant benafits

The College's emplovees helong 0 wo principal panson schemes: The Teachers' Pensions Schome
England and Wales (TPS) for acadamic and related staff and the Locel Governmenl Pensan Scheme
=

i'l r':htn -Ih-u- . 1-..|-I||n.|lu|. IF-'.'. giiblmly - P Bt oyl memed e miue il Bk s mei ol

O VETEEAT Rl FREGE e W '|'H.|II'IH1 Ll R -I Al '-"H L} '-'HII Ml T F B S T TIREIN

Emplurer definad-ienelt schames

Total ponsion cost for the year 2018 2017
£000 EXH0
Teachers Pemrtion Schami conliibulions paid L] Lor ]

Local Geyammeant Pansion Scheme:

Contributiones paid 1440 1,080

FRS 102 Cradit {1o0)
Charge in tha Stilemant Bf Comprebangiva Indome 1,300 1,080
Taisl pansion coal for year within siafl cosis {note T) 1,048 1,708

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with ke advice of indenendent oualified aciuaries. The
latest formal actuanal valuabon of the TPS was 31 March 2012 ang of the LGPS 31 March 2018

Confrisutions amaunting fo L2078 (209617 E203K) were payable o the schema al 315t July 2078 and
are included within creditors

63



Teachers' Pansion Schame

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

Mol less han every four years the Goverrment Actuary (MGA), Lsing narnal aotvaral prncipies, conducts
& formal actizsarial review of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS) The aim of the review is o specify the
level of fulure contribulions. Actuars scheme valualions are dependent on assumplions abaul the value
of fulure cosle, dasign of benafils and many olher facions

The TPS is a stalulory, confributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers' Pensions
Regulations 2014

Thi TPS s an unfunded scheme and members confnbule on g pay 25 you 40" basis — these conlr bulors,
along with Ihose made by empinyeds, are cradited (o the Exchagier

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Biesl actuaral review of the TRS was oo ed oul 65 a1 371 March 2002 and i accordance with The
Pubic Bervice Pensions {Valuations and Employer Cosl Cap) Directions 2014 The veluahon repor was
published by the Depariment for Educalion [ihe Depatment) on 2 Juna 2014 The key resulis of the

Waluation ane

New employer contnbuton rales were sst al 18.48% of pensionable pay (Incuding admenistration
fees of 0.0B%), increasing from 14.1% on 1 September 2015

tatal scheme hiabiltes for service 10 the effactive date of £191 & billion, and notional asseis of E1756
bilign, giving & nolsonal past serdce cefict of £14.9 billion,

an emplover cost cap of 10 8% of persionable pay;

Assumed real rate of return s 3.0% 0 excess of prices and 2% 1 excess of garminNgs.

Rale of real earmngs growth 15 essumed lo be 2. 755,

Assumad nominal rate of return is 508%

Thie new ampleyer coniribution rate for the TPS was implermantad in Septamber 2015

Afull pogy of fhe wakiation répart ard suppofting docsumsntabion cain ba found on the Teaohers” Ponsion
Scheme websie al the follovwing location:

Jvww teach nsions.co.ukl 201 4/06/ publication-af-the-
valuation-report.aspx

Thie pearesion cos!s pad (0 TRS 0 (ke yea amounted (o E648k (2018-17, £629K)

Ga



Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded definad-benefit plan, wih the assels neld in separate funds adminsterad by
Morthurnbedand Coundy Council, The tolal contribubions made for the year ended 31 July 2018 were
£1,563k of which emplover s contributions totaliad £1 300k and employess’ contribulions tolalled E263K
The agreed contribution rates for fulure years are 26 8% for employers and range from 5.5% to 12 5%
for employees, depending an salary

The current valuation does not reflect the expected increasa in benefits and therefore liability as a
resull of Guaranieed Minsmum Pension { GMP') equatisatran between men and women which is
required 85 a result of ihe removal of the Additional State Pension. Meihodologies for a long-term
solution are still baing investigated by the Government as sel out in the published (January 2018}
oulcome of the Government Consultation Indexalkon and Equalisetion of GMP in Public Secior
Pansions Schemsas' and thereiore the expected impact cannot be reliably estimated and consaguently
no proesonlability as baen recognisad.

Deficit contributions
The College has enlered nto an agraement with the LGRS to make additong’ contnbutgns of L9317
par month for the parod sl Ausgusl 2077 1o 3181 March 2098 and £13. 817 per month for the period Tet

Apdil 2018 fo 3151 March 2013 in addilion to normal funding levels until the next full valuatian, at which
poent the situation will be reviewed again,

Principal Actuarial Assumptions

The fallowing infarmabon s based upon a full aciuarial valuathon of the fund ai 31 March 2016 vpdaied
e 21 Julv 2018 by a qualified indepandent aciuary.

2018 2017
fate of increase v salanes 16% 2.5%
F LUMa DENBICTES MCrBases 21% 0%
Ao Tale for Soiwme bl * A% 2E%
inllatian assumpleen [CP) 21% 205



The current mortaiity assumphons inciude sutficient allowance for future impravements in mostality
rates_ The assuimed life sxpeciabons an relrement age 65 are

FRehrrmg foolay

Famalas

Ralitmg in 20 yaars
Mg

Femaies

2018 2017
AT Yiare
220 daE
3.0 248
PR 50
213 2.2
Fair Value at Fair Value at
I July 2018 31 July 2047
£'000 £'000
18,588 14,798
4543 3,760
1 847 1804
594 aan
2
a4 336
0 21,550
1,890 1,220

The adoption of FRS102 removes the réequiramant (o recopnise an expecied relurn on assals (em n
the profit and loss charge: This ibem is replaced with a nal financing cherge which is based on (ke

disesunt rale assumplion



The amount included in the balance sheel in respect of the defined bénefit pension plan is as
follows:

LN o i
£'000 £'000
Fair value of pien azsars 24,650 1 680
Prasent vlue of defined benefit abligation (25, 760) (25,440}
Met pansions llabslity {3,800} {4.450)

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Incoma in respect of tha plan

2018 Farh by
000 000
Amounts includad in stal costs
Currenl sepece €o%( 1.9 1060
Pist sindiog cod| Lt
Tatal 1400 1,080
Firancing cosi
Imteres] =n net osfined hanefi abligabon 2 120
100 120
Amaunt recognisad in Oiher Comprehensiva incoms
Asksd gring arisang dunng the penod 1.0 LR 1
LIy (losses] ansing dunng the penod { e A0
Aieiuane! logs Eneirg on snhanced pension . {HER)
Amount recogmisad in Other Comprahsnsive Income 250 a4y

=¥



Movemant in net defired benefit obligalion during year

ket dafinen benaf! obipaticn in achema-at 1 Ausgusat
Mavemeni in year:

Cofrenl sennce cnksl

Employer contrioutiong

Faml seraicy coat
Nisl inbaros! on e célinad (abikty]
Arluss @l gan of ipss

Nt defined benafit obligation at 31 July

&ssel and Liability Reconciliation

Changes in the prosent value of cefined benefit obligationg

Defined benalit obligations at stast of perod
Currenl sanace oost

Interesi cosi en defined beneil abligation
Conlributions by Scheme permcioanis

Achiamal gaasiosses) on (mbiites

Pl Brevefity masd

Past Servioe cosi

Curialrmenis snd setllemmenls

Definad benelit obligations ® end of perlod

2018

{4 4500

{13041

1300

{14
{1001

CLY

20m7
£'000
{5440)

[ 1,083}

1k

(120}

1990

{3,800)

[4,4500

2018

254410
1,390

81}
e

28, TE0



Changes in fair valies of plan assets

Fair walue of plan asseis at start of pariod

Irtarest income on assets
Re-measurmmanl gains{losses) on assale
Contribubiors oy ing empsyer
Contribubons oy Schame pafcipante

Hal baralis paid

Fair vaius of plan assets al end of periog

2018

E"l0

21,900

13140
=
2680

— oy

24,960

a9



25  Related party transaction

Owing to the nature of the College’s: aperations and tha compositian of the baard of govemnars being
drawn from Iocal public and privale seclor organsations, il & nevilable thal ransachans will lake piace
wih ovganisalions m which & member of the boerd of governors may hawve an nierasi. Al ransactions
invalving such orgamisalions dre conductaed at arm's langth and in accardance wilh the College’s finanacial
regulations and normal procurement procedures

The jolal expenses paid 1o or on behalf of the Governdrs dunhg the year was E0i (20161 7: Enil},

No Governgr has recoived any remuneration or wawved paymerits from the College or its subsidianes
gufing the year (201617 Lrd)

One Governor (W Oaiey) s a senior councilior of Northumberiand County Councll (NCC} and ane
Governor (K Angus) 1w 8 senior staff memper & NCC. Detals of ransactions wih Nornhumberand
County Councll are shown balow

One Governor (R Smith) s 3 director of Northumberland Business Senvice Limited (NBSL), ene of the
College's dalivery parinars on the £7 2m Europsan Social Fund (ESF | = Improving tha Labour Markat
Felevanca of Education and Teaining Systems contract Dataifs of the transactions with NBSL arg shawn
B,

Tre former Printpal was a Director of Landex end-a mernber of the Brijish Horse Socsety, Detads of the
transactions with Landex and the Briizh Horse Socesty sre shown below.

Hature of iransaction | ralalionship Emdﬁl Dabtor /| Creditor)
2018 2097 2018 01T

Horthumberiand County Council £,000 L.oon E000 .00

Secured Loan {nate V5) 345 a0 (2T (B.027T)

LEA® Luncing IRE (261) H il

High Newds funding = i1 . L

Raies i) e -

Ronis of pramises 7 27 (8} 18]

Data ey it

WBSL

ESF Panner Paymsnis 189 ik [4) (267)

Landen

Membership Fee T a -

Aritsh Horse Society

Conira approval 1

a



6. Post Balance Sheot Events

Felfowing discissions bebwaen Nordhumberdand Colege, Sunderand College ard the Further Educalion
Commissiones for ihe Nosth, |F has now bean agreed in ponciple that Nerhumbedand Callege will mene
with Sunderiand College

Siaff at Morthumberand College will now conbinue 10 work in dose parnership with colleagues in
Bunderland Cobege i anlimpation of the formal merger, antiopated 10 complete on 1 Maroh 2010

27.  Amounts disbursed as agent

2018 2017

Ega Enog

Funciang tedy grants — barsary suppon 151 1T
Funifisg body grarms —dscretionarny ieamer suppor 250 257
Fundeg body grants — residantial bursaries 113 128
=14 563

Disbursed to sudents (423 {333}
Administelinn costs ) i1m
Bafance Unspent as ol 37 July, inckded in cegiiors 72 151

Funding body grants arc available solely for students, In the majorily of mstances, e College oy @cls
as a paying agent. (n Inese circumstances, (he grants and related disbursemeants are therefore axcludan
from I Slalement of Comprehensive lncome.

T



